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Part I.

Overview and Introduction to the Institution

The Report of the Reaffirmation Committee is the final committee analysis and report that includes the
findings of the Off- and On-Site Reaffirmation Committees. It will be forwarded to the institution for a
formal response. The report and the institution’s response are forwarded to the Commissions Board
of Trustees for action on reaffirmation of accreditation.
Ranger College opened in 1926 and the College’s main campus occupies 50-acres within city limits of
Ranger, Texas and Eastland County community of approximately 2500 people, located on Interstate
20 between Fort Worth and Abilene. In 2011, Community College Week reported that Ranger College
was the fifth fastest-growing two-year college in the nation.
A

In addition to the Ranger Main Campus facility, the College provides comprehensive course offerings
at Brown County Center in Early and at the Erath County Center in Stephenville. Ranger also has
cosmetology programs in Brownwood and Stephenville. Vocational Nursing programs are offered at
the Brown County Center, Comanche County Center, and the Main Campus. The College operates a
Commercial Truck Driving Program in Early and in Stephenville. The Associate Degree Nursing
program is offered in Brown County.
Ranger serves several counties in north central Texas (Eastland, Brown, Erath, Comanche, and
Young) and awards the Associate of Arts, Associate of Science, Associate of Applied Science and
Associate Degree Nursing degrees. The College also offers Licensed Vocational Nursing, Welding,
Cosmetology, and Office Technology certificates. Ranger College’s Fall 2013 enrollment was 1,987
students. The College offers dual-credit college classes to students in 25 different high schools in the
College’s Service Area. Ranger College has an open admission policy.

a

Ranger College’s mission is “To provide teaching and learning opportunities through academics,
developmental education, workforce programs, and continuing education, empowering individuals to
become responsible members of the local and global community.” The College endeavors to prepare
its students to function successfully in an increasingly diverse and complex society by providing
opportunities to develop academic and workforce excellence appropriate communication skills, critical
thinking skills, and responsible citizenship, by providing the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Academic college courses at freshman and sophomore levels leading to associate degrees
and/or transferable college credit;
Developmental education which enables students to successfully advance to freshman-level
academic coursework;
Vocational and technical courses and programs that include workforce development leading to
‘employment, licensures, certificates, or associate degrees;
Continuing education short courses and activities for occupational, recreational, or cultural
upgrading;
Cooperative efforts with local communities and their agencies in providing adult literacy and
services and facilities to area citizens;
A program of student services and of educational support services designed to contribute to
the cultural, social, moral, intellectual and physical development of students in a safe
environment;
Administrative, financial, and auxiliary services in support of college programs;
2
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•
•
•

A program of intercollegiate athletics designed to enhance the academic success, physical
and emotional well-being, and social development of student athletes;
A program of distance learning instruction which is equivalent in quality to main campus
instruction; and
Other programs to meet purposes as may be prescribed by the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board or local governing boards in the best interest of postsecondary education
in Texas.

Part II. Assessment of Compliance

,d4tIIr

r

Sections A thru E to be completed by the Off-Site Review Committee andftOn-Site Reaffirmation
Committee. An asterisk before the standard indicates that it will be reviewed by the On-Site
Reaffirmation Committee even if the off-site review determines compliance.
A.

Assessment of Compliance with Section 1: The Principle of Integrity
1.1

The institution operates with integrity in all matters. (Integrity)
The On-Site and the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committees have determined that Ranger
College is an institution that operates with integrity in all matters.

B.

Assessment of Compliance with Section 2: Core Requirements
‘f4
2.1
The institution has degree-granttqg authority from the appropriate government agency
or agencies. (Degree-grantirtg Authority)
S
The Off-Site Reffi,n on Committee found that the Texas Education Code, Section
130 states that “jOThr colleges” shall serve local taxing districts with “courses for”
associate degres. However, this section does not specifically give degree granting
authority to Ranger College. The Texas Education Code, in section 61.051 designates
the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board as the “highest authority in the state in
?tters of higher education” and authorizes the Board to review, approve, or eliminate
degjee programs. However, the committee review found no evidence that the Texas
EdUation Coordinating Commission or any other agency has given specific degree
‘
grajng authority to Ranger College.

%f
‘%

In response to the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s concern that Ranger College did
not provide evidence that the Texas Education Coordinating Commission or any other
agency gave specific degree granting authority to Ranger College, the On-Site
Reaffirmation Committee reviewed evidence that Ranger College is authorized to grant
certifications or associate degrees.
The Texas Education Code, Section 130.0011, Public Junior Colleges; Role and
Mission contains this justification. This section stated that Texas public junior colleges
shall be two-year institutions primarily serving their local taxing districts and service
3

January2012

areas in Texas and offering vocational, technical, and academic courses for
certification or associate degrees.

C

In addition, the On-Site Committee viewed a letter from Dr. Carry Tomerlin, Deputy
Assistant Commissioner, Community and Technical Colleges of the Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board, to Dr. Dava Washburn, Ranger College Dean of
Administration and SACSCOC Liaison (June 17, 2013). The letter stated that, Ranger
College has the authority to operate as a public community/junior college in serving the
citizens of Texas, pursuant to the Texas statutes and Coordinating Board Rules and
Regulations. As such, it has the formal authority to award degrees under 130.0011 of
the Texas Education Code.”
‘5,
2.2

The institution has a governing board of at least five members that is the legal body
with specific authority over the institution. The board is an active policy-making body
for the institution and is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the financial resources
of the institution are adequate to provide a sound educationalçogram. The board is
not controlled by a minority of board members or by organizations or interests separate
from it. Both the presiding officer of the board and agnajority of other voting members
of the board are free of any contractual, employrfle Loersonal or familial financial
interest in the institution.

ç

A military institution authorized and operated by the federal government to award
degrees has a public board on which both the presiding officer and a majority of the
other members are neither civilian employees of the military nor active/retired military.
The board has broad and significant influence upon the institution’s programs and
operations, plays an active role in policy-making, and ensures that the financial
resources of the institution are used to provide a sound educational program. The
board is not controlled by a minority of board members or by organizations or interests
separate from the board except as specified by the authorizing legislation. Both the
presiding officer of the board and a majority of other voting board members are free of
any contractual, employment, or personal or familial financial interest in the institution.
(Governing Boar’d)%7
Ranger College is govemed by a nine member Board of Regents, with members
elected at large from the college district as required in the Texas Education Code,
Section 130.081. The names of regents and board agendas are clearly listed on the
college website. Board officers include a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary, according to
the board roster supplied in the Compliance Certification Report.

%

The Board is granted fiscal and policy authority by section 130.002 of the Texas
Education Code. These powers are clearly delineated in the Texas Community
Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA. Board minutes
demonstrate that the Board approves policy and exercises fiscal authority, including
approval of the annual budget.
Board minutes show that all board members frequently make and second motions,
indicating that the board is not controlled by a minority of members. Conflicts of interest
by board members are prohibited by Texas Local Government Code 171 .001-4 and
TACC-PRM Section BBFA, which requires a public official to file an affidavit disclosing
potential conflicts of interest in actions coming before the board and to abstain from
4
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voting on those actions. Signed disclosure statements demonstrate that regents
comply with this requirement. Violations of these provisions constitute a Class C
Misdemeanor, which assures compliance. The corporate, professional, and charitable
affiliations of regents are presented in the Compliance Certification.
2.3

The institution has a chief executive officer whose primary responsibility is to the
institution and who is not the presiding officer of the board. (See the Commission policy
“Core Requirement 2.3: Documenting an Alternate Approach. ‘7 (Chief Executive
Officer)
The Ranger College President is the chief executive officer of the college, with
supervisory responsibilities for all employees and programs of the institution, as
demonstrated in the college President’s position description and the organizational
chart. The President serves as “chief professional advisor” to the board, as noted in the
position description. The President’s relationship to the board is detailed in the Texas
Community Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA. A board
roster was presented for committee review. As an appointed public officer, the college
President is required to disclose potential conflicts of interest and abstain from a
decision if a conflict exists, according to Texas Lo91fQ4çrnment Code 171.001-4
Violations of these code provisions constitute a Class C Misdemeanor, which assures
V
compliance.
1
IL

2.4

I

The institution has a clearly defined, comprehensive, and published mission statement
that is specific to the institution and appropriate for higher education. The mission
addresses teaching and learning and, where applicable, research and public service.
(Institutional Mission)
\,( ‘7’
The institution has a clearly defined, comprehensive, specific mission statement that is
appropriate for higher education. The mission statement addresses teaching, learning,
and economic development as evidenced by its aim “to provide teaching and learning
opportunities through academics, developmental education, workforce programs, and
continuing education, empowering individuals to become responsible members of the
local and global community.” The mission statement is published in major publications
including the Catalog, Student Handbook and the college website. The mission
statement is also posted in strategic locations across all instructional sites and
campuses.

2.5
‘11%

The institution engages in ongoing, integrated, and institution-wide research-based
planning and evaluation processes that (1) incorporate a systematic review of
institutional mission, goals, and outcomes; (2) result in continuing improvement in
institutional quality; and (3) demonstrate the institution is effectively accomplishing its
mission. (Institutional Effectiveness)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the institution states that the
President provides Executive Priorities that the college uses as its strategic plan. The
Administrative Council is responsible for oversight of the Executive Priorities
throughout the institution. No evidence was provided that the Executive Priorities link
to integrated, institution-wide planning that leads to the college achieving its mission.
5
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Instead, the narrative suggests that priorities were developed only by the President
without input from other stakeholders or research-based best practices.
The Compliance Report states that an annual institutional effectiveness process
involving instructional, administrative, and support services staff is in place. The report
included three summary examples dated 2010-2012. The examples included the
President’s Office, Security, and Community Service units. These examples did not
provide a representative sample of the entire institution.
Further, the institution states that each planning unit is required to establish expected
outcomes, including student learning outcomes for educational units. However, the
institution failed to provide evidence that the instructional programs were engaged in
regular planning and evaluation processes. The institution states that “the Dean of
Administration records the final results for all unit plans in the Unit Planning
Assessment Summary, and evidence that the College’s IE process described is
ongoing is supported by annual IE documents maintained on the College’s website.”
However, no annual unit plans were provided for committee review.

C

Thus, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine compliance with CR
2.5.
‘I

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee was provided the recently approved Ranger
Community College Strategic Plan 2013-2018. The plan presented summaries of the
College’s internal and environmental data including service area characteristics,
student demographics, enrollment, peer comparisons, secondary educational system
data, tuition trends, and cost of attendance, labor market analysis, and projections for
enrollment, revenue and expenditures.
7.

The Strategic Planning process began in April 2013 with the formation of a Strategic
Planning committee comprised of the Executive Vice President, Vice President of Erath
County, Vice President for Instruction, Dean of Administration, Academic Advisor for
Erath County, and faculty. The Strategic Plan was developed in phases. During the
First and Second PhasesT’the committee gathered and examined institutional and
environmental data. The institution conducted an internal and external “Strengths,
Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats assessment”. Documentation was provided
of a series of meetings involving multiple college constituencies and stakeholders.
During these meetings, the college shared the results of its data and initiated dialogue
centered on the future of the college.

c

ç

Phase Three of the Strategic Planning process continued in Fall 2013 during the
faculty-staff development meeting. During this meeting a consultant lead discussions
with stakeholders and began development of preliminary planning goals, strategies and
success factors. Documentation of the resulting eight Strategic Goals and the revised
Mission Statement were provided. This information was published via the College’s
website to solicit feedback.
The Strategic Plan contains sample action strategies to accomplish the eight Strategic
Goals, and evaluation factors to determine whether the College is on track to attain its
goals. The plan links the eight Strategic Goals with the College’s budgeting process
and includes an integrated planning calendar. The document indicates individuals or

6
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positions responsible for planning. The Strategic Plan ensures an ongoing process by
implementing goals in a rolling three-year cycle.
Documentation provided linked the College’s annual institutional effectiveness process
to budgeting and the evaluation of whether the institution is effectively accomplishing
its mission. Interviews conducted on campus indicated the College is actively
incorporating the eight strategic goals into its annual planning and budgeting process.
2.6

The institution is in operation and has students enrolled in degree programs.
(Continuous Operation)
Ranger College has been in continuous operation since its inception in 1926, when it
encompassed both a junior college and a public school. Since 1950, Ranger College
has operated as an autonomous college overseen by a Board of Regents. Evidence of
student enrollment is provided in the 2012 Ranger College Fact Book and in the
statistical information provided by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s
Report on Texas Community Colleges Fall 2012 Enrollment.

2.7.1

The institution offers one or more degree programs based on at least 60 semester
credit hours or the equivalent at the associate level; at least 120 semester credit hours
or the equivalent at the baccalaureate level; or at least 30 semester credit hours or the
equivalent at the post-baccalaureate, graduate, or professional level. If an institution
uses a unit other than semester credit hours, it provides an explanation for the
equivalency. The institution also provides a justification for all degrees that include
fewer than the required number of semester credit hours or its equivalent unit.
(Program Length)
r
Ranger College offers degree pro6rams (Associate of Science, Associate of Arts, and
Associate Degree in Nursing). All associate degree programs are of at least 60 hours
in length. As stated in the Compliance Certification Report, the credit hour requirement
for associate degree programs is established by the Texas Higher Education
Coordin ting,,
.

r requirement for all programs is published in the catalog in printed and
The redit
formo unit other than the semester credit hour is used by the college.

,i

2.7.2

ThQps1itution offers degree programs that embody a coherent course of study that is
compatible with its stated mission and is based upon fields of study appropriate to
higher education. (Program Content)
The institution offers both transfer and workforce degree programs that are compatible
with its mission “to provide teaching and learning opportunities through academics,
developmental education, [and] workforce programs.” The Associate in Arts and the
Associate in Science degrees allow students to complete freshman and sophomore
requirements for their chosen baccalaureate degrees; the Associate of Applied Science
in Nursing and Welding prepare students for employment. While the transfer programs
allow a great deal of flexibility, the catalog publishes suggested courses of study for a
variety of baccalaureate majors. These guides, along with a 45 hour general education
7
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core curriculum, reflect a coherent course of study. The AAS degrees in Nursing and
Welding are structured with clear progression from foundational to advanced skills
courses, with appropriate general education requirements. All program offerings are in
fields of study appropriate to higher education.
*2.7.3 In each undergraduate degree program, the institution requires the successful
completion of a general education component at The collegiate level that (1) is a
substantial component of each undergraduate degree, (2) ensures breadth of
knowledge, and (3) is based on a coherent rationale. For degree completion in
associate programs, the component constitutes a minimum of 15 semester hours or
the equivalent; for baccalaureate programs, a minimum of 30 semester hours or the
equivalent. These credit hours are to be drawn from and include at least one course
from each of the following areas: humanities/fine arts, social/behavioral sciences, and
natural science/mathematics. The courses do not narrowly focus on those skills,
techniques, and procedures specific to a particular occupation or profession. If an
institution uses a unit other than semester credit hours, it proceides an explanation for
the equivalency. The institution also provides a justification if it allows for fewer than
the required number of semester credit hours or its equivalent unit of general education
courses. (General Education)
The institution requires the successful completion of collegiate-level, general education
courses for the Associate in Science (AS) and the Associate in Arts (M) degrees
offered. The state mandated cor&curriculum (general education courses that all
students of higher education institutions are required to complete before receiving an
undergraduate degree) requires from 42-48 semester hours in six areas (Critical
Thinking Skills, Communication Skills, Empirical and Quantitative Skills, Teamwork,
Social Responsibility, and Personal Responsibility). The general education courses
assigned to the transfer degree programs are based on a coherent rationale including
two courses in the Mu anlies/Fine Arts area that are broad based, not narrowly
focused or skill-5’
Senate Bill 148 of the 7th Texas Legislature (1997) mandated Field of Study curricula
that combine 39-45 semester credit hours of core curriculum with a specific major area
of course work (e.g., Business, Computer Science, Engineering, etc.). These degrees
are intended to facilitate transferability of course work to senior state institutions. These
institutions are required to accept the courses in fulfillment of lower-division
requirements for bachelor’s degrees in Field of Study majors. The AAS degrees
include 18 semester credit hours of core curriculum courses, including one course in
the Humanities/Fine Arts area.
3

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee noted two issues with the Compliance Report: a)
the committee was unable to locate a description of one of the core
requirement/general education courses, COSC 1400, identified as an Institutionally
Designated Option and b) three of the seven links provided did not link to correct
documents.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed pages 39-42 of the College Catalog
and interviewed the Vice President of Instruction in support of the institution’s case for
compliance and affirms the findings of the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.
B
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2.7.4

The institution provides instruction for all course work required for at least one degree
program at each level at which it awards degrees. If the institution does not provide
instruction for all such course work and (1) makes arrangements for some instruction to
be provided by other accredited institutions or entities through contracts or consortia or
(2) uses some other alternative approach to meeting this requirement, the alternative
approach must be approved by the Commission on Colleges. In both cases, the
institution demonstrates that it controls all aspects of its educational program. (See the
Commission policy “Core Requirement 2.7.4: Documenting an Alternate Approach. ‘9
(Course work for Degrees)
Ranger College offers Associate of Arts, Associate of Science, and Associate of
Applied Science degrees. The college provides all the coursework required for at least
the Associate of Arts and Associate of Science degrees as documented in the
schedule of classes.

*2.8

Q

The number of full-time faculty members is adequate to support the mission of the
institution and to ensure the quality and integrity of each of its academic programs.
(Faculty)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College has a definition for
full-time and adjunct faculty. The roles of each category are detailed in the Ranger
College Handbook Job Description. The faculty to student ratio is 24:1 for the Fall
2011 semester; Fall 2012 was not included. This is an increase from a ratio of 21:1 for
the Fall 2008 semester. Data with regard to the percentage of contact hours taught by
full-time and part-time faculty from Fall 2008-Fall 2011 (Fall 2012 was not included)
demonstrated that 71.3% of all contact hours were taught by full-time faculty.
However, the data was not disaggregated by program, instruction site, or mode of
delivery.
a
No information was included in the narrative that demonstrated that the institution has
adequate faculty to support its mission and programs. Thus, the adequacy of faculty to
support the mission and to ensure the quality and integrity of academic programs could
not be determined by the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.
A

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee also determined that Ranger College has a
definition for full-time and adjunct faculty. The roles of each category are detailed in
the Ranger College Handbook Job Description. Data for Spring 2013 semester
demonstrated that 64.04% of all contact hours were taught by full-time faculty.
With an enrollment increase of 113.5% in four years, the college has employed
additional faculty members at the two centers located in Brownwood and Stephenville.
Full-time faculty has increased from 27 in Fall 2008 to 35 in Fall 2012 (a 23%
increase). That number has remained constant.
The college also provided the number and distribution of faculty by academic program,
location of instructional site and mode of instructional delivery for Spring 2012, Fall
2012, and Spring 2013. As a result of the review of the information presented in the
Focused Report, the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the number of
full-time faculty is adequate to support the mission of the college and ensure quality
and integrity of academic programs.
g
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2.9

The institution, through ownership or formal arrangements or agreements, provides
and supports student and faculty access and user privileges to adequate library
collections and services and to other learning/information resources consistent with the
degrees offered. Collections, resources, and services are sufficient to support all its
educational, research, and public service programs. (Learning Resources and
Services)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College has formal
agreements with neighboring libraries and with the TexShare consortium to assure that
students and faculty have access to online and physical resources no matter where
they are located. In addition, the library provides students and faculty with access to
materials not currently owned by the college through an InterLibrary Loan service.

/
The library collection includes access to 24,500 books, periodicals, VHS and DVDs,
including online access to 235,334 unique ebook, reference, and serial titles through
51 different subject databases. All online materials are available 24/7. As a member
of the TexShare program, current students and faculty have check out privileges at
other participating TexShare libraries.
I

Library operating hours appear to provide student and faculty timely access. Library
services include circulation, instruction, and reference assistance available through
phone, e-mail, text, or chat. Online tutorials are also available. Additional services
include access to 28 computers and Wi-Fi.
The library staffs a library service area at two other centers operated by the college:
Brown and Erath County. The service areas provide students with access to library
books (through intra library loan), current periodicals, research assistance, computers,
and printing. The college also provides tutorial services through the computer stations
in the library on the main campus and at the Brown and Erath centers.
The library solicits feedback about library resources and services from students and
faculty through surveys. The recent survey (2013) is more informative than surveys of
2010 and 2011. Students and faculty expressed overall satisfaction with library
services, assistance, and collections. The library summary of student surveys provides
specific strategies of how it will use information garnered from the surveys to adjust
resources and services.
r

However, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine compliance for CR
2.9 in that no evidence was provided to demonstrate the adequacy or relevancy of the
collection, nor how collections are developed and maintained to meet the educational,
research, and programmatic needs of the college.
he On-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s review of the Ranger College Library website,
the online catalog, the TexShare consortium, and a formal agreement with the
Brownwood Public Library confirms that the institution provides and supports student
and faculty access and user privileges to adequate library collections and services.
The institution also provides addition access to audiovisual materials. Interlibrary loans
service is also available to obtain materials not owned by Ranger’s Golemon Library.
Patrons may submit requests via the library’s website.

10
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In additional to physical resources, Ranger students and faculty have 24fl remote
access to a collection of electronic resources via the library’s website. These
resources are accessible at off-site locations as well as any computer with internet
access. User name and password may be required for off campus access. Students
and faculty may contact library staff via phone, email, text, or live chat. Additional
information is needed regarding hours of operation at off-site locations and how
students at those locations obtain physical items from the main campus library, if
needed.
The institution’s Learning Resource Committee assists to ensure the library’s
-,
collections are adequate and relevant; and also reviews and approves titles
recommended for purchase. The library also has an appropriate acquisition policy
posted on the website outlining guidelines for selection and evaluation of materials as
well as collection maintenance.
Results from the Spring 2013 Student Library Survey indicate a level of satisfaction
with the library collection and public service programs.
*2.10 The institution provides student support programs, services, and activities consistent
with its mission that are intended to promote student learning and enhance the
development of its students. (Student Support Services)
Ranger College serves approximately 1,928 students and provides student support
programs and services at its main location as well as the two off-campus centers.
Student learning is promoted through advising, new student orientation and tutoring.
Activities that promote student development include counseling, job placement, and
student life and recreation. Services to assist students include financial aid,
admissions, and placement testing. All programs, services, and activities are available
at all sites through various offices.
I’

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed documents, toured the Student
Services area and conducted interviews with the Dean of Students, the Director of
Student Supj5brt Services and the Director of Financial Aid in support of the institutions
case for compliance and affirms the findings of the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.

2.11.1 The institution has a sound financial base and demonstrated financial stability to
support the mission of the institution and the scope of its programs and services.

AQ

,

The member institution provides the following financial statements: (1) an institutional
audit (or Standard Review Report issued in accordance with Statements on Standards
for Accounting and Review Services issued by the AICPA for those institutions audited
as part of a systemwide or statewide audit) and a written institutional management
letter for the most recent fiscal year prepared by an independent certified public
accountant and/or an appropriate governmental auditing agency employing the
appropriate audit (or Standard Review Report) guide; (2) a statement of financial
position of unrestricted net assets, exclusive of plant assets and plant-related debt,
which represents the change in unrestricted net assets attributable to operations for the
most recent year; and (3) an annual budget that is preceded by sound planning, is
ii
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subject to Sound fiscal procedures, and is approved by the governing board. (Financial
Resources)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the audited financial statements and
related management letters for FY 2011-12, FY 2010-11, and FY 2009-10. In each of
the audit reports the auditors stated that, in their opinion, the financial statements
presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Ranger College
District.
The college did not provide a statement of financial position of unrestricted net assets,
exclusive of plant assets and plant-related debt. The Compliance Certification included
a link named Ranger College Statement of Unrestricted Assets, Exclusive of Plant
Assets and Plant-Related Debt. However, the link was connected to an expenditure
budget document. Although the college did not provide a separate statement of
financial position of unrestricted net assets, exclusive of plant assets and plant-related
debt as required, the Committee did locate the numbers in the college’s audited
financial statements. Over the last three fiscal years the unrestricted net assets,
exclusive of plant assets and plant-related debt, increased by $1,750,767 from
$1,433.1 77 in FY 2010 to $3,183,944 in FY 2012 which indicates financial stability.
“a
Links were provided to the budgets for three years in the Compliance Certification
Report. Only one of the budgets was actually available for review. The links to the
budgets for FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 did not take the Committee to the referenced
budget documents. The link to the budget for FY 2012-13 actually took the Committee
to the budget for FY 2011-12. Furthermore, there was no evidence presented that
demonstrated the budget was proceeded by sound planning. Six of the fourteen links
provided did not link to correct documents.

-(

‘/t

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee was able to determine that the institution does
have a sound financial base and that it has financial stability. Ranger College is
audited on an annual basis. The College’s fiscal year runs from September 1 through
August 31. The College uses the auditing firm Snow, Garrett, and Williams, located in
Weatherford, Texas to complete its audits. The On-Site Committee reviewed the
audited financial statements and related management letters for FY 2011-2012, FY
2010-2011, and FY 2009-2010. The audited financial statements included the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Statement of Net Assets, Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to
the Financial Statements, as well as Supplemental Information, a Statistical
Supplement, Overall Compliance and Internal Controls and Federal Awards.

4

In each of the audit reports, the auditors stated that, in their opinion, the financial
statements presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Ranger
College District. Even though state funds have declined, “the increase in enrollment in
the college has led to increases and fees revenue to help offset these state
appropriated reductions.” Enrollment at the College has increased from 1,072 in 2010
to 1,440 in 2012. The College’s net assets have increased to increase over the past
three years.
The College provided a statement of financial position of unrestricted net assets,
exclusive of plant assets and plant-related debt, which represents the change in
unrestricted net assets attributable to operations for the most recent year. Over the
12
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last three fiscal years, the unrestricted net assets, exclusive of plant assets and plantrelated debt, have continued to increase.
Unrestricted Net Assets
Fiscal Year
I_________________
2011-2012
$3,183,944
1,949,775
2010-2011
1,433,177
2009-2010

Change from Previous
Year
+$1 234,169
+$ 516,598

J
÷$1,750,767

Total Increase

%

“V

The chart above indicates that the Unrestricted Net Assets have ineas by
$1,750,767 from 2009-2010 to 2011-2012. This increase indicates financial stability.
The College provided copies of the budgets for FY 2010-2011, 2011-2012, and 20122013 to the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee. The College also provided
documentation of Board approval of the 2013-2014 Budget by submitting the minutes
from the August 27, 2013 regular monthly Board Meeting: as well as documentation
that the budget was preceded by sound planning>
‘V

2.11.2 The institution has adequate physical resources to support the mission of the institution
and the scope of its programs and services. (Physical Resources)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the institution’s Facilities Master Plan
2012. The Facilities Master Plan Committee leads the master plan development
process. The college’s Administrative Council and the Board of Regents are also
involved in the development process. The plan was prepared by an architectural firm.
The college’s main campus is located in Ranger, Texas and there are three other offcampus centers: Brown County Center (15,000 square feet leased), Erath County
Center (2,200 square feet leased), and the Comanche Center (owned). There are
two other facilities used for cosmetology. Ranger has experienced significant growth in
recent years, most notably within the college’s high school dual enrollment program.
The college serves 24 high schools within the district. The college recently expanded
into Brown County and Erath County to satisfy demand.
-

-

‘The main campus has 20 buildings with approximately 180,000 square feet. The offcampus centers are relatively small. The main campus also includes six residence
halls. According to the master plan, most of the college’s buildings are deemed to be
in average condition with some rated as good and a few rated as poor. Some of the
buildings date back to 1950 while several were built in the 60’s, 70’s, and 80’s. The
master plan indicated that no significant capital construction has occurred over the
years but that space had been repurposed as needs for space changed.
The master plan described the college’s preventative maintenance plan and
commended the college’s dedicated maintenance staff. The master plan assessment
did not indicate that the physical facilities were inadequate to support the college’s
mission and services. However, there were a few areas where improvement
opportunities were identified. First, it was noted that the roadway infrastructure was in
13
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need of significant repairs as well as parking lots. Secondly, it was noted that the
college’s Information Technology and telecommunications infrastructure were both
outdated. The master plan identified efforts and plans that are underway to help
address the technology concerns.
2.12

C.

The institution has developed an acceptable Quality Enhancement Plan (QEP) that
includes an institutional process for identifying key issues emerging from institutional
assessment and focuses on learning outcomes and/or the environment supporting
student learning and accomplishing the mission of the institution. (Quality
Enhancement Plan)
V
The institution developed an acceptable QEP. See Part Ill for additional information.

0-

Assessment of Compliance with Section 3: Comprehensive Standards
3.1.1

The mission statement is current and comprehensive, accurately guides the
institution’s operations, is periodically reviewed and updated, is approved by the
governing board, and is communicated to the institution’s constituencies. (Mission).
¾

The mission statement is reviewed periodically, was last reviewed in January 2013,
and was approved by the Ranger College Board of Regents on February 21, 2013.
The mission statement is appropriately communicated to faculty, staff, students, and
other stakeholders through its publication in the catalog and on the website.
3.2.1

The governing board of the institution is responsible for the selection and the periodic
evaluation of the chief executive officer (CEO evaluationlselection)

The Texas Education Coder Section 51.352 (d) assigns the responsibility to appoint
and evaluate the chief executive of the institution to the governing board. This
responsibility is also reflected in the Texas Community Colleges Policy Reference
Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA. A review of board minutes shows the Board of
Regents appointed the current college President. Copies of recent evaluations
demonstrate that the President is evaluated annually by the Board in areas relating to
management, leadership, communications, employee supervision, and community
A relations.
3.2.2

Th’e legal authority and operating control of the institution are clearly defined for the
following areas within the institution’s governance structure: (Governing board
control)
3.2.2.1 the institution’s mission
The Texas Education Code, Section 130 vests the governing board with the
“exclusive powers to manage and govern the college district”. Texas Education
code, Section 61 .0511 and Texas Administrative Code 9.53 (a) require the
institution to develop a mission statement. The Texas Community Colleges
14
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Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA requires the governing
board to “insist on clarity of mission” and establish goals that are consistent with
the mission. The board fulfills the responsibilities for insuring clarity of mission
and establishment of goals by considering and approving the institutional
mission statement, as demonstrated by board minutes of February 21 • 2013.
3.2.2.2 the fiscal stability of the institution
The Texas School Code, Section 51.352 (e) gives board members “legal
responsibility” for the “management of funds under control of the institutio
The Texas Community Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM),
Section BAA delineates board duties, including approving budgets, setting
tuition, acting as a fiduciary, ensuring audits of accounts, receiving bequests,
establishing an endowment, and collecting rentals. Board minutes demonstrate
that the Board approves policy and exercises fiscal authority, including approval
of the annual budget and acceptance of the annual institutional audit.
3.2.2.3 institutional policy

‘

-4

The legal authority and responsibilities of the governing board are clearly
established in the Texas School Code, Section 51.352 and in the Texas
Community Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA.
This authority includes providing policy and “adopting rules, regulations and
Bylaws as the board deems advisable.” The Ranger College Administrative
Council and Policy and Procedures Committee review and recommend
adoption of policy, as described in the untitled list of committees and functions
on the college website, updated March 19, 2013 and verified by committee
minutes. A review of Board of Regents minutes demonstrates that the board
approves policy developed by committees and recommended by the President.
r

3.2.3

‘

q

A

The governing board has a policy addressing conflict of interest for its members.
(Board conflict of interest)
Conflicts of interest by board members are prohibited by Texas Local Government
Code 171.001-4, which requires a public official to file an affidavit disclosing conflicts of
interest in actions coming before the Board and to abstain from voting on those
actions. Violations of these code provisions constitute a Class C Misdemeanor, which
assures compliance. The ethical requirements of members of the governing board,
including responding to potential conflicts of interest, are detailed in the Texas
Community Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BBFA.
The Texas School Code, Section 61.084 requires all governing board members to
attend at least one training session during the first two years of service, including the
topics of ethics and conflict of interest. The TACC-PRM, Section BBD restates the
requirement for board members to attend training, including ethics and conflict of
interest training. The corporate, professional, and charitable affiliations of board
members are presented in the Compliance Certification. A review of completed
conflicts disclosure forms demonstrate that regents comply with conflict reporting
requirements.
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3.2.4

The governing board is free from undue influence from political, religious, or other
external bodies and protects the institution from such influence. (External influence)
Texas School Code Section 51.352 a (1) requires the governing board to “preserve
institutional independence and to defend [the institution’sj right to manage its own
affairs.” This requirement to preserve institutional independence” is restated in the
Texas Community Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA.
Conflicts of interest by board members are prohibited by Texas Local Government
Code 171.001-4, which requires a public official to file an affidavit disclosing conflicts of
interest in actions coming before the board and to abstain from voting on those actions.
Violations of these code provisions constitute a Class C Misdemeanor, which assures
compliance. This requirement is restated in TACC-PRM, Section BBFA Completed
conflicts disclosure forms demonstrate that regents comply with conflict reporting
requirements. The corporate, professional, and charitable affiliations of regents are
presented in the Compliance Certification.
I.

3.2.5

The governing board has a policy whereby members can be dismissed only for
appropriate reasons and by a fair process. (Board dismissal)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the removal of a governing board
member is governed by the Texas Local Government Code, Section 87.01 3. The
authority for removal of a board member rests in the Texas Civil Practice and
Remedies Code, Section 66.001. The method of removal under Texas Local
Government Code 87.015 is delineated in the Texas Community Colleges Policy
Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BBC. The reasons for removal, specified in
Section BBC, include incompetency, official misconduct, nonattendance, felony
conviction, and official misconduct. Removal of a board member for nonatlendance is
also governed by Texas Education Code, Section 130.0845. The Compliance
Certification document provided evidence that a board member resigned, but did not
indicate whether a board member had been dismissed.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College provided evidence
that indicates that no board member has ever been dismissed from the Board of
Regents at Ranger College. Mr. Doug Crawley, Chair, Ranger College Board of
Regents, indicated in a letter dated June 27, 2013, that a thorough investigation of
Board Minutes, back to the college’s beginning, indicates that no board member has
ever been dismissed.

)
3.2.L,, There is a clear and appropriate distinction, in writing and practice, between the policy
t_ making functions of the governing board and the responsibility of the administration
‘3’and faculty to administer and implement policy. (Board/administration distinction)

4

Texas Education Code, Section 51.352 defines the role of the governing board,
including responsibility for policy, standards, mission, goals, fiduciary obligations, and
appointment and evaluation of the college President. A comprehensive list of board
responsibilities, including citations of legal authority, is found in the Texas Community
Colleges Policy Reference Manual (TACC-PRM), Section BAA. The President’s
position description delineates responsibilities, including supervising employees,
overseeing college operations, preparing budget and contracts, approving travel,
16
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advising the board, and preparing the Facilities Master Plan and Institutional,
Effectiveness Plan.
The faculty, staff, and administration participate in college planning and recommend
policies through the administrative council and a series of committees with clearly
defined roles, as delineated in the untitled list of committees and functions on the
college website as of March 19, 2013. Minutes of committees’ and councils’ actions
demonstrate that these bodies review and adopt recommended policy. A review of
Board of Regents minutes demonstrates that the board approves policy developed by
committees and recommended by the President.
3.2.7

The institution has a clearly defined and published organizational structure that
delineates responsibility for the administration of policies. (Organizational structure)
‘I,

The Ranger College organizational chart is posted on the college website and clearly
delineates the supervisory structure of the college from the Board of Regents and
President to individual departments. The chart includes position title, incumbent name,
position number, office location, and contact information for administrative positions.
The supervisory responsibilities of each administrator are also specified in the position
descriptions, available on the college website as of March 4, 2013.
The organizational chart reflects the duty of the President to maintain “ultimate
responsibility” for the programs and functions of the college, with “oversight by the
Board of Regents” as specified in the President’s position description. The President
delegates these responsibilities through the Administrative Council and campus
committees, as delineated in the untitled list of committees and functions on the college
website as of March 19, 2013. \
a

*

3.2.8 The institution has qualified administrative and academic officers with the experience
and competence to lead the institution. (Qualified administrative/academic officers)

V
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the college provides the
organizational chart of key positions. The narrative lists the responsibilities and
members of the President’s Administrative Council. Vitae are provided but
qualifications can’t be determined due to the lack of job descriptions.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the current organizational chart of key
positions, as well as the list of the 201 3-2014 President’s Administrative Council
members. These members include the Executive Vice President Brown County, the
Vice President of Instruction, the Vice President of Erath County, the Dean of
Enrollment Management, the Dean of Student Services, the Dean of Administration,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Athletic Director, the Faculty Association President, and
the Director of Human Resources. The College also provided job descriptions for the
Division Chairs as well as resumes and transcripts.
-

As part of the annual performance evaluations, the College ensures that each position
maintains the competence required for effective leadership. The On-Site Reaffirmation
Committee reviewed completed official performance evaluations during the visit.
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As a result of the review of the new information, the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee
determined that the persons holding key leadership positions in the institution,
including administrative and academic officers, have the experience and competence
to lead the institution and are qualified to carry out their responsibilities.
3.2.9

C)

The institution publishes policies regarding appointment, employment, and evaluation
of all personnel. (Personnel appointment)
Ranger College publishes policies on the appointment, employment, and evaluation of
faculty, staff, and coaches in the Faculty Handbook, the Administration and Staff
Handbook, and the Coaches Handbook. These policies include Employment w
Restrictions, Hiring Practices, Employment Benefits, Administration and Staff
Evaluation, Title, Tenure and Faculty Evaluation, Coach Evaluation,
Termination/Probation, and Grievance. Faculty and staff can access these policies in
the handbooks on the college website. The college provided examples of the
recruitmenUhiring packages for faculty and staff as well as examples of completed
annual evaluation forms for faculty and staff to demonstrate that these policies are
implemented.
‘

3’-’
3.2.10 The institution periodically evaluates the effectiveness of its administrators.
(Administrative staff evaluations)
The Human Resources Office is responsible for coordinating the evaluation process for
administrative staff. Key positions evaluated by the President include the Executive
Vice President, the Vice President of Erath County, the Vice President of Instruction,
Dean of Students, Dean of Enrollment Management, Dean of Administration, Athletic
Director, Chief Financial Officer,’and HR Director/Assistant to the President.
Documentation provided shows evaluations on most of the positions; others were just
created and evaluation has not taken place yet. According to the policy, administrators
are evaluated yearly, prior to June 15, which was demonstrated by the sample
evaluations.
3.2.11 The institution’s chief executive officer has ultimate responsibility for, and exercises
appropriate administrative and fiscal control over, the institution’s intercollegiate
athletics program. (Control of intercollegiate athletics)
.0

, The Athletic Director (AD) is directly supervised by the President as demonstrated in

4

the Ranger College Organizational Chart and the AD position description. The
President has “ultimate responsibility” for “athletic programs of the college,” according
to the President’s position description. Also according to the description, the AD assists
the President in formulating goals, projecting personnel needs, recommending the
athletic budget, and “assuming any other duties as assigned by the President.”
The Dean of Enrollment Manager serves as athletic compliance officer for the college,
“preparing certifications for all athletics” as stipulated in that dean’s position
description. The Dean of Enrollment Manager serves under the Executive Vice
President, who is supervised by the President. The “Collegiate Athletic” budget is
included in the overall college budget and is approved by the Board of Regents, on the
18
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recommendation of the college President, as confirmed by board minutes. According to
the Compliance Report, the college does not have an athletic foundation.
3.2.12 The institution demonstrates that its chief executive officer controls the institution’s
fund-raising activities. (Fund-raising activities).
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the Compliance Certification states
that Rangers fundraising activities are “controlled by the College President with the
assistance of the Chief Financial Officer (CEO).” The President’s job description and
the RC organizational chart are presented to support this contention. The committee,
however, found no statement concerning fundraising in the President’s job description.
Likewise, the job description for the CFO, provided in the Compliance Certification,
included no mention of fundraising. The organizational chart verifies that the President
directly supervises the CFO and lists the areas supervised by the CEO. None of those
areas of supervision are clearly related to fundraising.
The RC Administrative and Staff Handbook, available o t?ie college website, states
that “all fundraising must be pre-approved by the Atbjetic irector. All money raised will
be deposited in a Ranger College ‘restricted’ account for the specific sport and used to
supplement the school budget as approved by the Athletic Director.” This statement
makes no reference to control by the President or CFO.
In regards to the concerns identified by the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee, the
institution revised the position description of the President and the Chief Financial
Officer. The revised descriptions indicate that Ranger College President approves all
college fund-raising and is assisted with this task by the Chief Financial Officer. A
supporting document was reviewed which indicates the fund raising relationship
between the President and Rodeo Coach in regards to a Ranger College NIRA Rodeo.
Ranger College also revised the College Coaches Handbook in regards to a statement
discovered by the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee that stated, “all fundraising must
be pre-approved by the Athletic Director.” The statement now reads that “all athletic
fund-raising is pre-approved by the Athletic Director and final approval is provided by
the President.” Fund raising activities of the college were discussed with the President
and the Chief Financial Officer.
3.2.13 For any entity organized separately form the institution and formed primarily for the
purpose of supporting the institution or its programs: (1) the legal authority and
operating control of the institution is clearly defined with respect to that entity; (2) the
relationship of that entity to the institution and the extent of any liability arising out of
that relationship is clearly described in a formal, written manner; and (3) the institution
demonstrates that (a) the chief executive officer controls any fund-raising activities of
that entity or (b) the fund-raising activities of that entity are defined in a formal, written
manner which assures that those activities further the mission of the institution.
(Institution-related entities)

ç

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the Bylaws of the Ranger Junior
College Foundation, Inc. The Bylaws referenced the Foundation’s Articles of
Incorporation but the articles were not presented to the Committee for review.
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Additionally, no evidence was presented to demonstrate the purpose of the Foundation
and the relationship (authority and operating control, if any) of the Foundation with
regard to the college. A formal agreement that should clearly describe the relationship
of the Foundation to the College and potential liability issues between the College and
the Foundation was not presented. Additionally, no evidence was presented to
demonstrate the responsibility of the college President with regard to control of any
fund-raising activities and/or the role of the President in relation to the Foundation.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined Ranger College in compliance after
a review of documents titled Articles of Incorporation of Ranger Junior College
Foundation, Inc., the Ranger College Foundation Letter of Agreement Between Ranger
College Foundation and Ranger College, and a Periodic Report Nonprofit
Corporation submitted by the Office of Secretary of State, Texas. From review, the
legal authority and operating control of the institution’s Foundation is clearly defined.
The Articles of Incorporation state that the Foundation is organized for the sole
purpose of assisting in and contributing to the academic and physical growth and
development of Ranger Junior College (1972).
—

‘

The formal Letter of Agreement indicates that the President of the College serves as
an ad hoc member of the Board of Directors, and the President and the Board of
Trustees of the College as well as the Executive Director and the Foundation’s Board
of Directors work in concert to establish goals and objectives related to the direct
needs of the college. The President’s job description indicates that the President must
approve all fund raising activities.

r

Evidence indicates the Foundation i&solely governed by its own Board of Directors and
Officers, and is responsible for monitoring its compliance with state and federal laws
governing its operation. The Bylaws of Ranger College Foundation Inc. define the
liabilities and indemnifications of the Foundation’s Board of Directors and is separately
liable for its own activities.
3.2.14 The institution’s policies are clear concerning ownership of materials, compensation,
copyright issues, and the use of revenue derived from the creation and production of all
intellectual property. These policies apply to students, faculty, and staff. (Intellectual
property rights)

%

The college’s policies on the intellectual property rights of employees and students
were approved by the Ranger College Board of Regents in December 2012. The
policies are published in the Faculty Handbook, the Administration and Staff
Handbook, the Student Handbook, and the Ranger College Catalog. The policy for
employees clearly states that all intellectual property created by employees for use at
the college belongs to the college unless a prior agreement of intellectual property
rights has been made. The policy for students clearly states that work created by a
student who is not an employee of the college is owned by the student. Employees
and students are responsible for copyright fees for works they awn.
However, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine compliance in that
the college did not provide documentation of the implementation of the intellectual
property policy nor a statement that the policy has never been used.
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The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s review of minutes from the Ranger College
Board of Regents meeting, the Faculty Handbook; the Student Handbook and the
Ranger College Catalog confirms that the institution’s policies are clear concerning
ownership of materials, compensation, copyright issues, and revenue derived from
intellectual property. The institution’s Board of Regents reviewed and approved the
Intellectual Property Rights for employees and students on December 18, 2012.
The policy clearly states that the institution shall retain intellectual property rights to all
work created by Ranger employees for use at the institution unless agreement has
been made prior to course development. Intellectual property produced by currently
enrolled students as part of coursework shall be owned by the student, not the
institution. Employees and students are responsible for copyright fees for works they
own. Evidence of policy implementation is documented via Intellectual Rights email to
all students and employees. The institution indicates that the policy has not been
utilized since its approval in December 2012.
“,
‘

3.3.1

)

The institution identifies expected outcomes, assesses the extent to which it achieves
these outcomes, and provides evidence of improvement based on analysis of the
results in each of the following areas (Institutional Effectiveness):
*3.3.1.1 educational programs, to include student learning outcomes
The institution identifies eight’academio’divisions/areas, including Associate of
Arts, Associate of Science, Associate Degree Nursing, Licensed Vocational
Nursing, Cosmetology, Welding, Computer Information Systems, and Office
Technology. The college modified its Institutional Effectiveness model for
academic programs in spring 2012 to incorporate an Educational Program
Assessment Portfolio Model based on student artifacts in each of the eight
educational programs.
I

*
4

The institution provided student learning outcomes, assessment results, and
evidence of improvements based on the analysis of the results for spring 2012
and faIl 2012. Even though the institution provided evidence that the
improvements were linked to the assessment results, the data covered only two
semesters. In addition, the institution did not address assessment of distance
learning. As a result, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine
compliance with CS 3.3.1.1.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee was provided three full annual
assessment cycles with documentation of artifacts used for assessment,
completed rubrics, minutes of assessment meetings, assessment timelines,
assessment results presented in graphic models, and documents listing
improvements made from various portfolio assessments. The narrative
describes the timeline for the Educational Programs Assessments.
The institution provided Program Student Learning Outcomes (PSLO5) for its
identified Educational Programs. The IE plans provided identified the
assessment method and course(s) in which each PSLO is assessed. The
assessment method is the submission of a sampling of course artifacts to an
Assessment Team for grading on a standardized rubric. The rubrics provided
21
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had three levels of evaluation: Accomplished, Competent, and Developing.
Interviews and documentation indicated the assessment criteria to be 70%
achievement of a “Competent” rating on the appropriate rubric. The method of
assessment linked to and was able to measure the PSLO. The Dean of
Administration and the IR Director compile the assessment ratings and
comments from an assessment team of reviewers and present the findings to
the faculty. Documentation provided indicates faculty interprets the
assessment findings and devises improvements based on the assessment
results.

0

The institution uses a sampling of its artifacts to be assessed by the
standardized rubric by the assessment team. The Institution did not provide a
rationale for the sampling, nor evidence that it is a valid cross-section of
programs offered at off-campus locations or course work offered through
distance education. In addition, the institution did not provide disaggregafion of
results of assessment and evaluation based on the mode of delivery or location.
Recommendation 1: The On-Site Reaffirm
n
that the institution identifies expected out
which it achieves these outcomes, and prpv
based on analysis of the results in eac,J U.
include student learning outcomes.
7

iftee recommends
cses the extent to

evi ence of improvement
I programs, to

3.3.1.2 administrative support services

4’

The institution identifies six units related to administrative support services,
including the President’s Office, Business Office, Athletics,
Maintenance/Grounds, ER/IRIIT, and Human Resources. The institution
provided clear evidence of ongoing assessment, with the articulation of
expected outcomes and evidence of improvement based on analysis of results
in all six units, using a consistent template to document the process.
3.3.1.3 academic and student support services

*
c

A

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the institution identifies
eight units related to educational support services including Developmental
‘Education, Housing, Security, Student Support Services, Enrollment
Management, Library, Distance Education, and Financial Aid. The institution
provided links for all units for two planning cycles (2010-2012 and 2012-2013).
However, the links to 2012-13 plans did not work for Distance Education,
Library, Financial Aid, and Housing. Also, the 2010-12 link did not work for
Housing. Therefore, there was not sufficient evidence for the Off-Site
Committee to prove compliance with this standard. In addition, the 201 0-2012
plan for the Library included only one outcome, and Counseling/Testing was not
listed as a planning unit in this standard.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee was provided Planning, Assessment, and
Improvement plans for Distance Education, the library, Counseling, Financial
Aid, Housing, Admissions Registrar, Student Support Services, Developmental
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Education, and Security. The institution provided links for all units for two
planning cycles (2010-2012 and 2012-2013) and the links were active.
The Planning, Assessment, and Improvement plans are templates that contain
an “Intended Outcome, Key Strategies, Assessment, Results & Analysis and
Improvement”. Through interviews with campus personnel, the on-site team
was provided examples of student service area plans that contained outcomes
stated in terms of services provided to students, or what students should know
or are able to do as a result of services. The Assessments measured the
Intended Outcomes and specific assessment criteria were proposed. Examples
of “Results and Analysis” were offered that contained enough detail to
confidently assess the Intended Outcome.
The On-Site Committee noted the Student Services unit plan was a particularly
strong plan and could be used as a model for other areas.
3.3.1.4 research within its mission, if appropriate
Not Applicable.

—3

3.3.1.5 community/public service within its mission, if appropriate
I

The institution identified one unit related to community/public service. The
institution provided clear evidence of ongoing assessment, expected outcomes,
and evidence of improvement based on analysis of results in the
V
Community/Public Service unit.
3.3.2

The institution has developed a Quality Enhancement Plan that (1) demonstrates
institutional capability for the initiation, implementation, and completion of the QEP; (2)
includes broad-based involvement of institutional constituencies in the development
and proposed implementation of the QEP; and (3) identifies goals and a plan to assess
their achievement. (Quality Enhancement Plan)
‘I

The institution satisfactorily addressed all components of this standard. See Part Ill for
additional information.
3.4.1

4c

The institution demonstrates that each educational program for which academic credit
is awarded is approved by the faculty and the administration. (Academic program
approval)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that curriculum changes for existing
programs begin with Division Chairs. The proposals are then sent to the Vice
President of Instruction. After approval by the Vice President, the proposals are sent to
the Curriculum Committee and, if approved by the Curriculum Committee, to the
President. If necessary, approved changes are then sent to the Board of Regents and
the Texas Higher Education Board. New programs proposals must follow the same
process as delineated for curriculum changes and must be forwarded to the Texas
Higher Education Board for approval.
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The Compliance Certification included minutes of the Curriculum Committees to
document actions taken at this level. The narrative also stated that a THECB proposal
was included as supporting documentation; however, it was not provided. In addition,
the institution did not include evidence that any policy exists codifying this process. As
a result, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine compliance with
CS 3.4.1.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that all educational programs for
which academic credit is awarded are approved by the faculty and the administration.
Proposed changes to the curriculum are initiated by the Division Chairs and submitted
to the Vice President of Instruction. After approval by the Vice President, curriculum
changes are proposed to and approved by the Curriculum Committee, then sent to the
President. Changes are then sent to the Ranger College Board of Regents and if
necessary to the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) for final
approval. The process is clearly described in the Faculty Handook. Examples of the
procedures followed were evident in minutes from the Curricu urn Committee, Board of
Regents, and the THECB.
3.4.2

The institution’s continuing education, outreach, and service programs are consistent
with the institution’s mission. (Continuing educationlservice programs)
The institution offers continuing education, outreach, and service programs that clearly
support its mission to provide “teaching and learning opportunities” and opportunities
“to develop ...workforce excellence.” The institution offers customized training for area
businesses and industries, courses to support small business owners, and non-credit
vocational courses designed for those eeking new job skills or certifications. The
institution also offers noncredit hobby/personal enrichment courses of general interest
to the community.
Ranger College engages its students to participate in service learning opportunities,
primarily through its annual Day of Champions, when students volunteer for a variety of
half-day service projects. Faculty and staff at the institution are also encouraged to
serve the community through service to civic organizations. Community service aligns
with the institution’s mission to provide learning opportunities and to “empower
individuals to become responsible members of the local.. .community.”

*34,3 The institution publishes admissions policies that are consistent with its mission.
(Admissions policies)

%ç

Ranger College is an open-door college with an admissions policy that aligns with its
mission. Admissions information is published on the website and in the catalog.
Specific admissions requirements for nursing and cosmetology are also published in
the same manner. The policy also includes a nondiscrimination statement.
Information pertaining to the Texas Success Initiative (TSI) to assess student academic
skills is also published.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the catalog and website and
conducted an interview with the Dean of Enrollment ManagemenURegistrar in support
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of the institution’s case for compliance and affirms the findings of the Off-Site
Reaffirmation Committee.
3.4.4

The institution publishes policies that include criteria for evaluating, awarding, and
accepting credit for transfer, experiential learning, credit by examination, advanced
placement, and professional certificates that is consistent with its mission and ensures
that course work and learning outcomes are at the collegiate level and comparable to
the institution’s own degree programs. The institution assumes responsibility for the
academic quality of any course work or credit recorded on the institution’s transcript.
(See Commission policy “Collaborative Academic Arrangements.’) (Acceptance of
academic credit)
The institution has published policies for evaluating, awarding, and accepting credit as
well as for transfer and advanced placement. These are available in the college catalog
and are consistent with Texas Education Code, Section 51.968 and the Board Policy
Manual. The institution complies with the Code in accepting credit from other state
institutions and applies acceptable standards in evaluating and awarding credits from
out-of-state institutions. The institution utilizes the services of the National Association
of Credential Evaluation Services (NACES) to evaluate credits from outside of the
United States. No documentation was provided regarding credit for experiential
learning, specifically for professional licensure.

C)

3.4.5

The institution publishes academic policies that adhere to principles of good
educational practice. These policies are disseminated to students, faculty, and other
interested parties through publications that accurately represent the programs and
services of the institution. (Academic policies)
Ranger College has academic po icies that are available online in the Student
Handbook, Faculty Handbook and college catalog. Review of CS 3.7.5 included
Curriculum Committee meeting minutes that demonstrated implementation of policy
management procej

A
3.4.6

AC
3.4.7

The institution employs sound and acceptable practices for determining the amount
and level of credit awarded for courses, regardless of format or mode of delivery.
(Practices for awarding credit)
The institution assigns credits to its courses based on the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board Academic Course Guide Manual. All courses, campus, and
distance education align with the Texas Common Course Numbering System (TCCNS)
and the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) Rules and Regulations
that define a one-credit hour course as 15 hours of lecture contact during the semester.
The institution ensures the quality of educational programs and courses offered
through consortia relationships or contractual agreements, ensures ongoing
compliance with the Principles and periodically evaluates the consortial relationship
and/or agreement against the mission of the institution. (See the Commission policy

25

January2012

“Co/laborative Academic Arrangements.’) (Consortia relationshipslcontractual
agreements)
The institution participates in the Virtual College of Texas (VCT), a service of the Texas
Association of Community Colleges. Online courses offered through VCT are
transferrable among Texas community colleges. Course evaluations are administered
statewide to students registered in the distance courses. The institution’s Curriculum
Committee reviews and approves VCT syllabi and VCT faculty credentials. The
institution has a number of clinical agreements in place for its LVN (Licensed
Vocational Nurse) and ADN (Associate Degree in Nursing) programs.
3.4.8

V
The institution awards academic credit for course work taken on a noncredit basis only
when there is documentation that the noncredit course work is equivalent to a
designated credit experience. (Noncredit to credit)
The institution does not award academic credit for course work taken on a noncredit
basis or grant credit for experiential learning. Students who believe that they have
gained equivalent knowledge to earn college credit may apply for “Credit-By
Examination.”

3.4.9

A

The institution provides appropriate academic support services. (Academic support
services)
Ranger College offers financial aid, new student orientation, tutoring, enrollment
assistance, testing, and accommodations for individuals with disabilities. Information is
published on the college’s website and in the student handbook. Programs and
services are provided at all sites. The narrative does not clarify tutoring for persons
who do not meet the briteha for the TRIO program. The responsibility of new student
orientation is not assigned to an specific office.

7

3.4.10 The institution places primary responsibility for the content, quality, and effectiveness
of its curriculum with its faculty. (Responsibility for curriculum)
‘P

The Curriculum Committee has the responsibility to “ensure the integrity and the
substance of courses and programs offered at Ranger College” and “ensure curriculum
quality and effectiveness.” Committee membership includes eight faculty and one
administrator as voting members, plus five administrators as ex-officio members.
Minutes of committee meetings show the committee’s active engagement in approving
new and revised courses, grading system changes, general education status for
courses, new certificate programs, policies for transfer work, and credit for AP and
credit-by-examination work.
The Curriculum Committee also evaluates progress of division program reviews and
program improvement proposals developed by faculty. Assessment Team results are
reviewed and plans for improvement are approved by the faculty as documented in the
minutes of faculty meetings.
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*3.4.11 For each major in a degree program, the institution assigns responsibility for program
coordination, as well as for curriculum development and review, to persons
academically qualified in the field. In those degree programs for which the institution
does not identify a major, this requirement applies to a curricular area or concentration.
(Academic program coordination)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s review of the College’s materials determined
that the institution offers four degree programs. The AA program appears to be
coordinated by a division chair with a Ph.D. in English; the AS program appears to be
co-coordinated by two division chairs, one holding a Ph.D. in Biology, the other holding
an MS in mathematics. The two AAS programs in Nursing and Welding are
coordinated by the Workforce division chair, who holds a MEd and an MBA, and the
Nursing dean, who holds an MSN. A welding instructor is listed in the compliance
certification, but it is not clear that her responsibilities include program coordination.
For the AAS Welding degree program the institution has not demonstrated that it has
assigned responsibility for program coordination to a peron ademically qualified in
the field. Thus, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee Could n determine compliance
with CS 3.4.11.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the institution offers four degree
programs and has demonstrated that it has assigned responsibility for program
coordination to a person academically qualified in the field. The M program is
coordinated by a division chair with a Ph.D. in English; the AS program is co
coordinated by two division chairs, one holding a Ph.D. in Biology, the other holds an
Ed.D. with a concentration in secondary and higher education mathematics. The AAS
program in Welding is coordinated by the Workforce division chair, who holds a M.Ed.
and an MBA. This chair coordinates and works with the Welding Coordinator, who has
an M.S. in Agriculture & Consumer Resources, and the Cosmetology Directors, who
have the necessary certifications and licenses. The Dean of Nursing holds an MSN
and the LVN Director has the associate degree in nursing.
A
I

3.4.12 The institution’s use of technology enhances student learning and is appropriate for
meeting the objectives of its programs. Students have access to and training in the use
of technology. (Technology use)
1•

4ç

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the institution provides opportunities
for students to develop competencies in the use of technology through its requirement
of successful completion of Computer Science (COSC) 1400 or 1401 for all students
seeking an AA, an AS, or ADN degree or a certificate in Computer Information
Systems or Office Technology. Students also have opportunities to develop
competencies through the use of computers and software provided in the three
computer labs, the library, and technology classrooms. Wi-Fi is available in all
buildings. Through a grant, Student Support Services provides laptops for short-term
checkout on each campus. 1W classrooms at the main campus, Brown/Erath centers,
and high schools allow single interactive lectures to be broadcast at multiple locations.
Blackboard is utilized for online and hybrid courses.
No evidence was provided that a process is in place for identifying programmatic goals
in the area of technology. The narrative also indicated that “outside the classroom,
students are provided opportunities to access technology training...in the use of email
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accounts, internet access, and CampusConnect”; however, no supporting evidence
such as training schedules, announcements, etc. was provided. Faculty training on
Blackboard takes place as part of convocation in spring and fall; this appears to be the
primary opportunity for technology training provided.
An institution’s use of technology to enhance student learning is provisioned upon a
sound IT infrastructure that ensures consistent provision of IT services and support for
the institution, its students, staff, and faculty. The institution provided in its narrative
entitled Use of Information Technology to Meet Program Objectives evidence of its
organizational structure. According to the organizational chart provided, the Dean of
Administration oversees the department of Information Technology. Job descriptions
of the Dean of Administration and Director of Information Technology were provided
but the job description for the Dean did not mention supervision of IT and/or the
Director of IT services.
4
No evidence of IT policies/procedures was provided, nor was4ere evidence that the
institution evaluates its provision of IT services and support. The Compliance
Certification reports that the college assists students having technical difficulties with a
“Technical Assistance link on the College’s homepage,” including “contacts for specific
issues in addition to an IT Trouble Ticket system.” Since the documentation for the IT
Trouble Ticket system is missing and no other evidence of IT support to students is
provided, the Off-Site Committee could not ascertain the effectiveness and usage of IT
support delivered to students.
The On Site Reaffirmation Committee’s review of documents and interviews
determined that the institution’s use of technology enhances student learning and is
appropriate for meeting the objectives of its programs. Ranger’s Technology
Committee’s responsibilities include updating the institution’s technology plan on an
annual basis, encouraging the development of Internet based classes; developing
plans for technology budget expenditures; and making technology-related purchase
order recommendations as evidenced by committee minutes.
“F

A

Ranger College students have appropriate access to technology at the main campus
and at all off-site locations. An interview with the IT Director reveals that improved
infrastructure of increased bandwidth facilitates wireless internet in all buildings on the
main campus. Computer labs and four smart boards are also available for use. The
Brownwood and Stephenville sites also have wireless internet, computer labs and ITV
classrooms.
Faculty and staff are notified of technology training opportunities as demonstrated by
emails of training schedules from the IT Director. Additionally, a Blackboard tutorial
video and the IT Trouble Ticket System are available via the institution’s website. All
students have access to campus email and access to and training in the use of
technology.

3.5.1

The institution identifies college-level general education competencies and the extent
to which students have attained them. (General education competencies)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College has established
general education competencies for the Associate of Arts and the Associate of Science
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degree programs. Included for review were a Student Learning Outcome Course
Curriculum Matrix and Student Learning Outcome Rubric to be used for consistency.
The information was collected in an electronic “portfolio”; however, a summary of the
results to assess student attainment of general education competencies was not
included. The extent of general education competency attainment for students not
enrolled in the transfer programs was not addressed; thus, the Off-Site Committee
could not determine that Ranger College was in compliance with CS 3.5.1.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee was provided the general education
competencies for the Associate of Arts, the Associate of Science degree programs, the
Associate Degree Nursing and Associate of Applied Science Welding programs. A
table was also provided to indicate that the four General Education Competencies are
a subset of the Educational Program Student Learning Outcomes. The general
education competencies are assessed within the 45 semester credit hours of the
College’s core curriculum which is based on guidelines provided by the Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board.
The institution provided artifacts, rubrics and assessment summaries that indicate
ongoing assessment activities for student attainment of the general education
competencies. The mbdcs used describe three levels of achievement: Accomplished,
Competent, Developing, and Insufficient Evidence to Assess. The assessment criteria
are defined as 70% achievement of a score of “Competent” on the appropriate rubric.
Documentation provided indicated the Dean of Administration and the IR Director
compile the ratings and comments from an isessment team of reviewers and present
the findings to the faculty. Docume4itation provided indicates faculty members interpret
the assessment findings and devise improvements based on the assessment results.

‘N
3.5.2

At least 25 percent of the credit hours required for the degree are earned through
instruction offered by the institution awarding the degree. (See the Commission policy
“Collaborative Academic Arrangements.’) (Institutional credits for a degree).
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College Catalog states that
one of the graduation requirements for the Associate of Arts and Associate of Science
degrees is to complete at least 25% of the credit hours required for the degrees at
Ranger College. However, the residency requirement for the Associate of Applied
cience is completion of seventeen semester hours of the last twenty-two hours prior
o graduation at Ranger College or a total of thirty- six semester hours at Ranger
C ilhge..

c

,.

Co_mpletion of 17 hours is 25.4% of the 67 credit hours required for the Associate of
Applied Science in Welding, but only 23.6% of the 72 credit hours required for the
Associate of Applied Science in Nursing. The Counselor Approval of Degree plan for
the Associate of Science degree does not state the requirement listed in the Catalog
but rather say that students “must successfully complete 16 semester hours of the last
twenty-two semester hours in residency prior to graduation or thirty-six total semester
hours in residency.”
Thus, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine compliance with CS
3.5.2.
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The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the institution awards credentials only
to students who have earned at least 25% of their credit hours of instruction through
the institution. The policy is written in the 2013-2014 Catalog (p. 40-42). Processes are
in place to monitor and verify that at least 25% of the coursework completed for a
degree are completed in residency at the college prior to graduation. The
documentation provided in the Focus Report did not adequately prove that the
processes are followed. However, degree plans were provided during the On-Site visit
to indicate the College does adhere to the policy and processes.
3.5.3

The institution publishes requirements for its undergraduate programs, including ‘its
general education components. These requirements conform to commonly accepted
standards and practices for degree programs. (See the Commission policy
“Collaborative Academic Arrangements.’) (Undergraduate program requirements)
The institution publishes requirements for its programs in the catalog, which is
available online. Requirements for the M, AS, and AAS degree programs include
general education courses required for each as well as semester displays of required
courses. All courses come from a statewide common course system, which helps to
ensure that they conform to commonly accepted standards’Other requirements, such
as GPA and residency requirements, are also published in the catalog.

3.5.4

At least 25 percent of the course hours in each major at the baccalaureate level are
taught by faculty members holding an appropriate terminal degree—usually the earned
doctorate or the equivalent of the terminal degree. (Terminal degrees of faculty)

(3

Not Applicable
3.6.1

The institution’s post-baccalaureate professional degree programs, and its master’s
and doctoral degree programs, are progressively more advanced in academic content
than its undergraduate programs. (Post-baccalaureate program rigor)
Not Applicable

4
3.6.2

A

The institution structures its graduate curricula (1) to include knowledge of the literature
of the discipline and (2) to ensure ongoing student engagement in research and/or
appropriate professional practice and training experiences. (Graduate curriculum)

çXrNot Applicable
3.6.3

At least one-third of credits toward a graduate or a post-baccalaureate professional
degree are earned through instruction offered by the institution awarding the degree.
(See the Commission policy “Collaborative Academic Arrangements.’) (Institutional
credits for a degree)
Not Applicable
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3.6.4

The institution defines and publishes requirements for its graduate and post-graduate
professional programs. These requirements conform to commonly accepted standards
and practices for degree programs. (Past-baccalaureate program requirements)
Not Applicable

3.7.1

The institution employs competent faculty members qualified to accomplish the mission
and goals of the institution. When determining acceptable qualifications of its faculty,
an institution gives primary consideration to the highest earned degree in the discipline.
The institution also considers competence, effectiveness, and capacity, including, as
appropriate, undergraduate and graduate degrees, related work experiences in the
field, professional licensure and certifications, honors and awards, continuous
documented excellence in teaching, or other demonstrated competencies and
achievements that contribute to effective teaching and student learning outcomes. For
all cases, the institution is responsible for justifying and docuenting the qualifications
of its faculty. (See Commission guidelines “Faculty Crede iaTh,(Faculty
T
competence)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found tha2g College has clear guidelines
promulgated by the Texas Higher Education Board that outline faculty qualifications.
The Committee reviewed faculty rosters for the 2012 Spring and Fall Semesters of
2012 and identified 15 faculty whose documentation did not fully support the teaching
assignment.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed faculty credentials and determined that
one faculty member’s documentation did not fully support the teaching assignment
(see Request for Justifying and Documenting Qualifications of Faculty form at the end
of this report).
—
Recommendation 2: The On-Sib affirmation Committee recommends that the
institution employscompetenti
lty members qualified to accomplish the
mission and goals p1 the institution.

3.7.2

‘

4

3.7.3

The institution regularly evaluates the effectiveness of each faculty member in accord
with published criteria, regardless of contractual or tenured status. (Faculty
evaluation)
The institution has a process by which it evaluates all faculty members that is applied
regularly by the institution and is consistent with criteria published in the Faculty
Handbook. Students evaluate their instructors in two ways: a mid-semester survey
response each fall and an online end-of-course student evaluation each fall and spring.
Supervisors evaluate faculty members each year using a standard rating system
applied to various criteria related to instruction, student support, accountability, and
college and community service. The Compliance Certification included samples of
faculty evaluations demonstrating that this procedure is implemented.
The institution provides evidence of ongoing professional development of faculty as
teachers, scholars, and practitioners. (Faculty development)
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Ranger College did not provide evidence of ongoing professional development of
faculty. Division meeting and start of the semester meeting agendas with topics that
addressed possible professional development activities were presented. No evidence
of attendance was included, nor was there any evidence of a budgetary commitment to
faculty development. Thus, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine
compliance with CS 3.7.3.

C

The On-Site Committee found that Ranger College provides faculty development
opportunities in a variety of ways, including on-campus in-service training sessions
throughout the year. These sessions include topics such as library information, advisor
training, technology updates, and other faculty driven workshops. The College also
supports off-campus professional development opportunities. A review of the
activities/workshops provided and attended by faculty reflects adequate professional
development opportunities available to the faculty of the College. Additionally,
documentation was provided to indicate that the Instructional Administration Budget
includes monies for professional development.
3.7.4

The institution ensures adequate procedures for safeguarding and protecting academic
freedom. (Academic freedom)
Ranger College has a policy that addresses acadenireedom. The policy is printed
in the Faculty Handbook and available online. The College also has a grievance policy
to protect the rights of all faculty members. The college reports that it has had no
instances of grievance associated with academic freedom.

3.7.5

The institution publishes policies on the responsibility and authority of faculty in
academic and governance matters. (Faculty role in governance)

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that Ranger College establishes the
faculty’s role in academic and governance matters through its committee structure.
Serving on college committees is listed in the Faculty Handbook as one of the duties of
full-time faculty. Faculty members comprise the majority of members on the
Curriculum Committee, Institutional Mission Committee, Learning Resource
Committee, Ad Hoc Committee on Grievances, Transfer Issues, Distance Learning
Committee, and the Quality Enhancement Committee. Faculty also serve-though not
in the majority, on the Administrative Council, Intercollegiate Athletics Oversight
‘‘Committee, Technology Committee, Leadership Committee, Compliance Certification
Committee, Facilities, Maintenance and Grounds, and the Policies and Procedures
Committee.

q

4%.)

7

The college has identified a list of responsibilities for each of the committees which
documents the role each committee plays in the college’s academic and governance
matters. Information about the committee structure is revised annually and sent to all
faculty members via e-mail. However, no evidence was presented to document that
this policy is published. Thus, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not
determine compliance with CS 3.7.4.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College establishes the
faculty’s role in academic and governance matters through its committee structure.
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The college submitted the 2013-14 Standing Committee List to document the role that
each committee plays in the college’s academic and governance matters. Committee
assignments are revised annually prior to the fall semester, approved by the
Administrative Council, and sent to faculty via email. A list of each committee’s
membership and responsibilities is published on the Human Resource Office’s website,
The institution provides facilities and learning/information resources that are
appropriate to support its teaching, research, and service mission.
(Learning/information resources)

3.8.1

I

The library facility appears to have adequate facilities to serve the institution: 7,500 sq.
feet, Wi-Fi equipped, resources (28 PCs, software, copy machines), collections (24,400
titles, approximately 50 online databases, and 70,000 ebooks), and services
(reference, circulation, tutoring, and instruction).
Three years of student satisfaction survey information are provided (2010, 2011, and
2013) as well as one year of faculty survey information (2013). The available student
survey information indicates increasing satisfaction with library resources and general
satisfaction with staff assistance; faculty appear satisfied with both library resources
and staff assistance.
Library facilities are present at the main campus and at the two centers (Brown and
Erath), offering student’s access to library resources, computers, internet, and
Interlibrary Loan. Online book and journal access, as well as materials available
through the TexShare agreements with other libraries, provides access to students no
matter where they are located. Campus library operating hours provide student and
faculty timely access. Access to facilities and resources appear sufficient to meet the
needs of the campuses and online users.
Academic tutoring services are provided at the main campus and two centers (Brown
and Erath).
3.8.2

The institution ensures that users have access to regular and timely instruction in the
use of the library and other learning/information resources. (Instruction of library use)
The institution provides evidence of availability of various types of instruction to its
students and faculty at its main campus and centers. The narrative states that the
library offers orientation sessions to students periodically during the semester to meet
the scheduling needs of the students. Evidence such as workshop schedules or
announcements should be provided in the documentation.

4

The library offers personal one-on-one instruction via email, chat, phone or text.
Documentation on usage might be considered. On-campus users are provided with
“indirect instruction through handouts and guides available in person at all Ranger
College locations and on the Library website.” Documentation provided is an
announcement about text messaging service. More appropriate evidence would have
been a screen capture of the handouts and guides available on the website.
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The narrative offers, presumably for instruction of off-campus users, a section entitled
“Online Tutorials and Guides” but provides only a description of one guide, “The Basic
Online Research Guide”; supporting documentation consists of a screen shot of a
literature database. More appropriate evidence would have been a screen capture of
the tutorials and guides available for online users. In addition, nothing in the narrative
or documentation addresses how the library evaluates its instructional services to see if
it is meeting the needs of the students, faculty, or programs.

ED

A
3.8.3

The institution provides a sufficient number of qualified staff—with appropriate
education or experiences in library and/or other learning/information resources—to
accomplish the mission of the institution. (Qualified staff)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the evidence of credentials
provided by the college demonstrates that one full-time librarian has the necessary
qualifications but that two other full-time library staff hold degrees not necessarily
associated with learning resources: BBA in Sports Management and a Master’s in
Education/Kinesiology. A transcript and vita were not provided for one of these
individuals. Two part-time employees each have degrees.,
I.

The college did not provide evidence of how it determines qualifications for its library
staff nor did it demonstrate that the number of staff is sufficient to accomplish the
mission. In addition, no evidence is provided to demonstrate that library staff
participate in or have the opportunity to participate in professional development
training. As a result, the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine
F”
compliance with CS 3.8.3.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College employs four library
staff members, two full-time and two part-time. The Director of Learning Resources
and both library adjuncts have appropriate credentials and experience in library and
information resources. The committee could not initially determine the specific job title
for the other full time position. Narrative and documentation from the Focus Report
alternates between the job titles “library assistant” and ‘assistant librarian” despite the
job description indicating “library assistant.”

‘%,,

7

However, the Committee’s interview with the Library Director confirms that the full-time
position is a library assistant. Appropriate documentation of required qualifications for
the position were provided. Additional documentation also indicated that the full-time
staff person is currently pursuing a MLS degree. All staff were determined to
appropriately qualified.
7
Library adjuncts are also available at the Brown County and Erath County locations.
Staff at both locations primarily work evening hours to accommodate peak library
traffic. The adjuncts have MLS degrees and appropriate library experience. An
interview with the Library Director confirms that she maintains a flexible schedule to
assist at off-site locations when needed. Review of the library’s webpage notes
additional forms of contact with staff via the Text a Librarian service or the Ask a
Librarian chat service that can be utilized from off-site locations. Appropriate contact
information is provided at all locations.
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Documentation of various webinars, meeting agendas and emails demonstrates
professional development opportunities for library staff. Results from the Spring 2013
Student Library Survey and the 2010-2011 Library Improvement Survey indicate a level
of satisfaction with the service of library staff. Data from peer institutions also confirms
that the institution provides a sufficient number of qualified staff; however, the
institution should be aware that as potential growth at the Stephenville site occurs,
additional staffing hours should be considered.
3.9.1

The institution publishes a clear and appropriate statement of student rights and
responsibilities and disseminates the statement to the campus community. (Student
rights)
The college has a policy on what students have the right to knoJLjegar ing financial
aid. The college publishes a Code of Conduct in the Student Pfadbook. Th is policy
covers violations, sanctions, and due process procedujtr tide’ts.

3.9.2

The institution protects the security, confidentiality, and integrity of its student records
and maintains security measures to protect and back up data. (Student records).
Section FJ of the Texas Association of Community Colleges Policy Reference Manual
addresses student records. The college has a policy that aligns with the manual and
with FERPA. The Office of Enrollment Management is responsible for training faculty
and staff on FERPA regulations to make sure they understand confidentiality. The
Dean of Enrollment Management is the responsible person for student records.
Records are kept both electronically and physically. Electronic files are backed up
weekly and stored at an off-campus bank in a fire proof vault that has a combination
lock. The institution does not appear to have records retrieval process in case of a
disaster.
•1

3.9.3

The institution provides a sufficient number of qualified staff—with appropriate
education or experience in the student affairs area—to accomplish the mission of the
institution (Qualified staff)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the college did not provide adequate
supporting documentation to determine whether the staff members in the student
affairs area are qualified. The Compliance Report included a roster of staff members,
along with professional development and professional memberships; however, there
was no documentation of their qualifications or job descriptions. An organization chart
was provided in CS 3.4.9, but it did not show the Brown Campus within the
organization.

c

Ranger College provided additional information to the On-Site Reaffirmation
Committee in the form of a Qualified Staff Chart with Name, Title, Responsibilities,
Educational Qualifications and Professional Experience. The college also provided job
descriptions, transcripts, relevant certifications and resumes. An updated
organizational chart with the Brown Campus was also provided. Based upon the
review of this additional information and an interview with the Dean of Students, the
On-Site Committee determines that Ranger College has a sufficient number of
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qualified staff with appropriate education or experience in the student affairs area to
accomplish the mission of the college.
3.10.1 The institution’s recent financial history demonstrates financial stability. (Financial
stability)
The Off-Site Committee reviewed the college’s audit reports and management letters
for the past three fiscal years. The college received an unqualified audit opinion for
each of the years, which indicates that the financial statements presented in the audit
are presented fairly and free from material misstatements. The financial statements
along with other schedules reviewed by the Committee support the opinion that the
/
college is financially stable.
The Committee’s review of the unrestricted net assets for the past three years shows
that the college’s unrestricted net assets increased every year during that period.
Overall during the three-year period, net assets increased 55%, from $1,433,177 in FY
10 to $3,183,944 in FY 12.
I

The increase in unrestricted net assets occurred in large part due to the increased
enrollment during the past three years. The Committee reviewed data which revealed
that enrollment increased every year during this period, resulting in a 39% enrollment
growth. As a result, revenues from tuition and fees increased every year during this
period. Net tuition and fee revenues increased overall by 45%. Revenues from almost
every major revenue source increased as well. Even state appropriations increased by
3% during this same time period. This is a significant accomplishment given the overall
economic conditions of the country during this timeframe.
I
4,

The Committee reviewed information that showed the expenditures increased as well
during the past three years but not at the same rate as revenues. The college
dedicated most of the expenditure increases to instruction, student services, and
scholarships and fellowships. This would seem appropriate to support the growth in
enrollment.
*

3.10.2 The institution audits financial aid programs as required by federal and state
regulations. (Financial aid audits)
‘

‘Rim

The Committee reviewed the college’s audit reports and related management letters
for FY 11-12, FY 10-11, and FY 09-10. There were no audit findings or questioned
costs related to the Title IV programs in any of the three fiscal years reviewed. Also,
the report contained no findings or questioned cost related to the administration of
state financial aid programs. In each report it was the auditor’s opinion that the college
complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on its major federal programs.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed Audit reports and this review supports
the institution’s case for compliance and affirms the findings of the Off-Site Committee.
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3.10.3 The institution exercises appropriate control over all its financial resources. (Control of
finances)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed various business-related policies and
procedures that are intended to manage risk by establishing the appropriate controls,
including segregation of duties. Examples of the policies and procedures reviewed
include travel, inventory, budget, payroll, depositing and balancing of receipts, and
college credit card use.
While the college indicated that all job duties of the business office are complered by a
qualified staff member, no evidence was presented to the Committee fort.
credentials of the staff.
bIIiir
Additionally, as noted in CR 2.11.1, the Committee reviewed theft ports for FY
2011-12, F’? 2010-11, and F’? 2009-10. As stated in CR 2.11.1 in each of the audit
reports, the auditors stated that, in their opinion, the financial statements presented
fairly in all material respects the financial position of the R
C liege District.

S

However, the Committee noted material weaknesses exist related to internal controls
over financial reporting in each of the audit reports for the past three years.
Specifically, there were three material weaknesses identified in the FY 2011-12 audit
report. These same three weaknesses existed in the FY 2010-11 audit report as well
as in the FY 2009-10 audit report. Each year management identified corrective action
that needed to be taken, yet the same findings are repeated. The findings indicate
there are breakdowns in internal controls resulting in inadequate preparation and
review of financial reports, accounting records, and reconciliations as well as errors in
recording transactions in the general ledger. The findings also indicate that bank
reconciliations are not performed in a timely manner. Additionally, it was also found
that the college did not prepare its financial statements or record financial transactions
using the accrual basi
accounting as required by GAAP (Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles
Thus, the Off-Site1
m ee concluded that the college failed to demonstrate control
of its finances and that the institution should demonstrate compliance with the three
audit recommendations or minimally demonstrate significant progress toward
compliance.
The On-Site Committee reviewed various business-related policies and procedures
that are intended to manage risk by establishing the appropriate controls, including
segregation of duties. Examples of the policies and procedures reviewed include
travel, inventory, budget, payroll, depositing and balancing of receipts, and College
credit card use.
The institution provided job duties and credentials for the Business Office staff,
including the Chief Financial Officer, the Bursar, the Accounts PayabiefAccounting
Clerk, and the Payroll Coordinator. The Chief Financial Officer, who has been in this
position for two years, holds an MBA and has 29 years in Higher Education, with 16 of
these years involved in accounting. The Bursar, who has been in this position for 2.5
years, holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and has ten years of
banking experience. The Accounts Payable/Accounting Clerk, who has three years in
the current position, has 15 semester credit hours in Computer and Business Courses
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as well as 35 years’ experience in general office including reception, accounts payable,
and quality control. The recently hired Payroll Coordinator holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration. The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the
College has qualified staff to provide financial services. Overall, the members of the
Business Office staff are fairly new to the College.
The On-site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the audited financial statements and
related management letters for 2011-2012, FY 2010-2011, and FY 2009-2010. The
audited financial statements included the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Statement of Net Assets, Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Assets, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial Statements, as well as
Supplemental Information, a Statistical Supplement, Overall Compliance and Internal
Controls and Federal Awards. In each of the audit reports, the auditors stated that, in
their opinion, the financial statements presented fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Ranger College District.
In response to the suggestion by the Off-Site Committee, the’College provided
information to demonstrate compliance with the three audit recommendations or to
demonstrate that it was making progress toward compliance. The College provided a
letter from its auditor, Snow Garrett Williams, which indicated that even though the
College has had repeat findings in the past three fiscal years, the auditor has noted
that the “College is implementing improvements in controls and processes to address
these items each year. We also noted that Ranger College has made great strides in
upgrading its personnel in key accounting positions since 2010.” The letter continues
to state that, “We also noted that from fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2012, the College
addressed several more of the items noted in previous audits, including the following:
1 Making timely bank deposits and recording related receipts into the general
ledger;
Properly recording tuition and fees and related discounts for scholarships and
grants awarded; and
Improved control over the use of signature stamps including a log documenting
the purpose of the use of the signature stamp.”
The letter further states “it appears that additional improvements are being made
based on our review of the College’s recent corrective plan in response to your offsite
committee finding (3.10.3).” The College also provided samples of supporting
imentation of corrective action for each audit finding, including copies of bank
neiliations with President’s approval, statements of discounts for tuition fees for
•iularships, recording state benefit contributions as defined by Senate Bill 1810, proof
view of bank statements every six months for outstanding checks that need to
have a stop payment and be reissued, copies of journal entries, and copies of logs that
is who used the signature stamp and for what purpose, etc.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that with new qualified staff and new
controls in place, the institution now exercises appropriate control over its financial
resources.
3.10.4 The institution maintains financial control over externally funded or sponsored research
and programs. (Control of sponsored researchlexternal funds)
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The Committee reviewed the college’s audit reports and related management letters
for FY 11-12, FY 10-11, and FY 09-10. There were no audit findings or questioned
costs related to federal or state programs in any of the three fiscal years reviewed. In
each report it was the auditor’s opinion that the college complied, in all material
respects, with the compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on its major federal programs.
The college assigns an administrator to each grant program as well as the chief
financial officer who serves as the fiscal agent. The Committee reviewed various
documents designed to control external grant programs. The Committee reviewed
information regarding establishing budgets, invoicing/reporting, and various business
policies.
3.11.1 The institution exercises appropriate control over all its physical resources. (Control of
physical resources)
The college controls risk associated with its physical resources through acquisition of
various levels of insurance coverage for assets and other types of liability coverage.
The Committee reviewed various coverage documents.
The college controls movable equipment through the use of various operating
procedures and systems. The Committee reviewed the operating procedure
documents. The controls include properly tagging of equipment upon receipt and
conducting an annual physical inventory of the equipment items.

7

The Committee also reviewed the college’s Facilities Master Plan document. The
document contains the college’s preventative maintenance plan. The college also uses
security and local police departments to maintain control of the physical resources as
well as to provide a safe campus environment.
The Commjpe also reviewed the college’s audit report as part of CR 2.11.1. The
report did n3Jdntify any audit findings or recommendations related to the control of
physical riJi’ç.
3.11.2 The institutin takes reasonable steps to provide a healthy, safe, and secure
environment for all members of the campus community. (Institutional environment)

ç

The Ranger College Emergency Plan provided procedures to be followed in the event
of various emergency situations. Specifically, the plan covered active shooter, bomb
threat, evacuation, fire, severe weather, minor accidents, and physical plant problems.
The college conducts tests of its emergency preparedness procedures. The college
uses e-mail and text messaging in addition to the sirens at the main campus for
residential students.
The main campus is provided with 24/7 security coverage (utilizing both armed and
unarmed security). The off-campus centers utilize the services of the local police
departments. The college undergoes various inspections from external agencies such
as the health department. The college has a Safety and Security Committee.
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*3.11.3The institution operates and maintains physical facilities, both on and off campus, that
appropriately serve the needs of the institution’s educational programs, support
services, and other mission-related activities. (Physical facilities)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the college’s Facilities Master Plan
2012. The Facilities Master Plan Committee leads the master plan development
process. The college’s Administrative Council and the Board of Regents are also
involved in the development process. The plan was prepared by an architectural firm.
The college’s main campus and two centers consist of 29 buildings totaling —
approximately 200,000 square feet. The master plan describes the conditions and
purposes of the various buildings. For example, the Welding Building obviously
contains the welding program, and the Science Building contains classrooms and
faculty offices. The college appears to have the capability to repurpose a building or
spaces to meet the academic and program needs of the college. For example, one
residence hall has been repurposed to serve as classrooms and offices. Given the
enrollment in relation to the available square footage, the college appears to have
adequate, but not excessive, space to accomplish the mission of the college. The
college also appears to have an appropriate level of athletic facilities.
1

7

Additionally, the college opened off-campus centers to meet enrollment and program
demands. For example, in addition to the Ranger facility, the college provides
comprehensive course offerings in Brown County in Early and in Erath County in
Stephenville. Ranger also offers the cosmet6logy programs in Brownwood and
Stephenville. Comprehensive Vocational Nursing programs are offered in Brown
County and at the center in Comanche. The college operates a Commercial Truck
Driving Program in Early and in Stephenville.
(

The master plan also contains the college’s preventative maintenance plan. The
college uses a combination of its own physical plant staff and out-sourced services to
maintain the facilities. Administrative and office staff also provides light maintenance
services when appropriate.
r

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed documents, the Facilities Master Plan
2012, and conducted interviews in support of the institution’s case for compliance and
affirms the findings of the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee. The Committee verified
that the institution operates and maintains physical facilities, both on and off campus,
that appropriately serve the needs of the institution’s education programs, support
services, and other mission-related activities.

7

Ranger College has a number of off-campus site locations, and although each campus
site has different levels of resources available to students, faculty, and staff, each
campus and center appeared to have adequate resources to meet their needs. Overall,
the physical facilities are adequate at Ranger College and other sites as verified in
conversations by the on-site team with students, faculty, and staff. These sites were
visited by members of the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee.
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3.12.1 The institution notifies the Commission of changes in accordance with the
Commission’s substantive change policy and, when required, seeks approval prior to
the initiation of changes. (See the Commission policy “Substantive Changes for
Accredited Institutions.’) (Substantive change))
According to its narrative, the institution did not notify the Commission that students
could receive 50% or more of a degree at high school and off-campus sites. It has
since notified the Commission of this omission and submitted a prospectus; however, it
has not received a response from the Commission.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the institution has received a letter
from the Commission requesting additional information related to the substantive
change prospectus but it has not yet responded to the letter. The letter also requested
a copy of the institution’s substantive change policy. The institution indicated that a
draft policy has been developed but not yet approved.
Recommendation 3: The On-Site Reaffirmation Cots enhçcornn1ds that the
institution notifies the Commission of changesir
n withthe
Commission’s substantive change policy anddwhen ThpuiPete3pproval
prior to the initiation of changes.
7
3.13.1 The institution complies with the policies of the Commission on Colleges. (Policy
compliance)
*3j 3.1. “Accrediting Decisions of Other Agencies”
Applicable Policy Statement. Ahy)nstitution seeking or holding accreditation from more than
one U.S. Department of Education Yecognized accrediting body must describe itself in identical
terms to each recognized accrediting body with regard to purpose, governance, programs,
degrees, diplomas, certificates, personnel, finances, and constituencies, and must keep each
institutional accrediting4body’apprised of any change in its status with one or another aecrediting
body.
Documeg.T e institution should (1) list federally recognized agencies that currently
accredit Ost1tution or any of its programs, (2) provide the date of the most recent review by
each agency and indicate if negative action was taken by the agency and the reason for such
act, (3) provide copies of statements used to describe itself for each of the accrediting
btdiés, (4) indicate any agency that has terminated accreditation, the date, and the reason for
e Ination, and (5) indicate the date and reason for the institution voluntarily withdrawing
ajtation with any of the agencies.

c

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that while Ranger College’s
narrative asserts that it has “specialized program accreditation for some programs of
study, a page from the college catalog, the only supporting documentation for this
standard, lists only the college’s institutional accreditation with SACSCDC. Ranger
College has institutional accreditation only through the Southern Association of
Colleges and Schools and Schools Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC).
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College states that it has
institutional accreditation only through the Southern Association of Colleges and
Schools Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC). In response to the Off-Site
Committee’s concern that Ranger College asserts that it has “specialized program
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accreditation but only listed SACSCOC” as its sole accrediting body, the On-Site
Reaffirmation Committee members held interviews with the Vice President of
Instruction, the Dean of Students, and the Dean of Enrollment Management. Those
interviewed affirm that Ranger College does not have programs with specialized
accreditation, and that SACSCOC indeed is their only accrediting body.
3.13.2 “Collaborative Academic Arrangements: Policy and Procedures”
Applicable Policy Statement. Member institutions are responsible for notifying and providing
SACSCOC with signed final copies of agreements governing their collaborative academic
arrangements (as defined in this policy). These arrangements must address the requirements
set forth in the collaborative academic arrangements policy and procedures.’ For all such
arrangements, SACSCOC-accredited institutions assume responsibility for (1) the integrity of
the collaborative academic arrangements, (2) the quality of credits recarded ó thçir transcripts,
and (3) compliance with accreditation requirements.
Documentation: The institution should provide evidence that it has reported to the
Commission all collaborative academic arrangements (as defined in this policy) that included
signed final copies of the agreements. In addition, the institution should integrate into the
Compliance Certification a discussion and determination of compliance with all standards
applicable to the provisions of the agreements.
A
According to the Compliance Certification Report, Ranger College has no collaborative
agreements for the purpose of awarding academic credit. There are several
references; however, to a proposal to collaborate with International Truck Driving
Training to convert a non-credit truck driver training program to a 15-credit hour
academic program. According to Curriculum Committee minutes, the external training
school would provide the training, books and equipment. The proposal was approved
by Curriculum Committee and by the governing board. It is not clear whether this
collaborative agreement is in place; thus, compliance with this policy could not be
determined by the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed documentation that shows that Ranger
College has been approved to offer a 16 semester hour Truck Driving Program in
partnership with International Truck Driving Training Institute. The approval came from
both the Ranger College Board of Regents and the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board. The Vice President of Instruction was interviewed concerning this
partnership and reports that currently, the program continues to be offered as a noncredit program as Ranger Colleges prepares the necessary documents to submit to
SACSCOC for request of a substantive change. The college will only begin to offer the
Truck Driving Program as credit once the substantive change is approved by
SACSCOC.
“Complaint Procedures Against the Commission or Its Accredited Institutions”
Applicable Policy Statement. Each institution is required to have in place student complaint
policies and procedures that are reasonable, fairly administered, and well-publicized. (See FR
4.5). The Commission also requires, in accord with federal regulations, that each institution
maintains a record of complaints received by the institution. This record is made available to
the Commission upon request. This record will be reviewed and evaluated by the Commission
as part of the institution’s decennial evaluation.
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Documentation: When addressing this policy statement, the institution should provide
information to the Commission describing how the institution maintains its record and also
include the following: (1) individuals/offices responsible for the maintenance of the record(s), (2)
elements of a complaint review that are included in the record, and (3) where the record(s) is
located (centralized or decentralized). The record itself will be reviewed during the on-site
evaluation of the institution.

The college does have in place policies and procedures regarding complaints. The
Dean of Student Services is responsible for maintaining complaints. The college did
not provide a log of submitted complaints and as a result, the Off-Site Committee
determined non-compliance with this policy.
A,
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee agreed that the institution was not required to
provide a log of submitted complaints with the initial Compliance Certification Report.
While on campus, members of the committee reviewed additional reviewed additional
documents and conducted interviews with the Dean of Administration and Dean of
Students and supports the institution’s case for compliance:
The college has in place student complaint poliie and proce res that are
reasonable, fairly administered, and well-publi
The complaint policies are located
in the Ranger College Student Handbook which i ublished electronically on the
college’s webpage. The Grievance Form is available in the Dean of Students office and
online. The Dean of Student Services is responsible for maintaining complaints. The
college provided examples of 2 student complaints. The college provided a copy of the
complaint log for the On-Site Committee to review.
‘

.

3.13.4. “Reaffirmation of Accreditation and Subsequent Reports”
*3.13.4.a Applicable Policy Statement. An institution includes a review of its distance
learning programs in the Compliance Certification.
Documentation: In order to be in compliance with this policy, the institution must have
incorporated an assessment of its compliance with standards that apply to its distance and
correspondence education programs and courses.
The Off-Site Rmation Committee noted that institution serves distance learning
students through online instruction and televised instruction. Assessment of distance
leaftiirg appears in the appropriate sections of the Compliance Certification Report.
On-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s interview with the Dean of Administration
confirms that Ranger College includes an assessment of its distance learning
programs. Students enrolled in distance education courses are protected by FERPA
as well as through the CampusConnect online secure system. All student information is
kept confidential. Students enrolling in distance education courses are required to login
to their courses using a secure username and password issued by the Distance
Education department. Instructions are distributed at the main campus and off campus
centers as well as posted on the College’s website.
The institution appropriately verifies the identity of students who participate in distance
education coursework. Ranger College requires students to obtain a student
identification card. Instructors require students to present a picture ID and sign in to
document time of testing when taking all proctored exams. Students enrolled in
distance learning courses must also utilize a secure username and password to login
January 2012
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to their courses. The institution appropriately documents verification of student
identification and has a written procedure notifying students of projected additional
charges of identification verification at time of enrollment.
3.13.4.b. Applicable Policy Statement. If an institution is part of a system or corporate
structure, a description of the system operation (or corporate structure) is submitted as part of
the Compliance Certification for the decennial review. The description should be designed to
help members of the peer review committees understand the mission, governance, and
operating procedures of the system and the individual institution’s role with in that system.
Documentation: The institution should provide a description of the system operation and
structure or the corporate structure if this applies.
Not Applicable.
3.13.5. “Separate Accreditation for Units of a Member lnstitufioO
3.13.5. a. Applicable Policy Statement. All branch campuses related to the parent campus
through corporate or administrative control (1) include the name of the parent campus and
make it clear that its accreditation is dependent on the continued accreditation of the parent
campus and (2) are evaluated during reviews for institutions seeking candidacy, initial
membership, or reaffirmation of accreditation. All other extended units under the accreditation
of the parent campus are also evaluated during such reviews.
Documentation: For institutions with branch campuses: (1) The name of each branch campus
must include the name of the parent campus—the SACSCOC accredited entity. The institution
should provide evidence of this for each of its branch campuses. (2) The institution should
incorporate the review of its branch campuses, as well as other extended units under the parent
campus, into its comprehensive self-assessment and its determination of compliance with the
standards, and indicate the procedure for doing so.
Not Applicable.

4

3.13.5.b. Applicable Pdllcy Statement. If the Commission on Colleges determines that an
extended unit is autonomous to the extent that the control over that unit by the parent or its
board is significantly impaired, the Commission may direct that the extended unit seek to
become a separately accredited institution. A unit which seeks separate accreditation should
bear a different name from that of the parent. A unit which is located in a state or country
outside the geographic jurisdiction of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools and
which the Commission determines should be separately accredited or the institution requests to
be parately accredited, applies for separate accreditation from the regional accrediting
ssociation that accredits colleges in that state or country.
Implementation: If! during its review of the institution, the Commission determines that an
extended unit is sufficiently autonomous to the extent that the parent campus has little or no
control, the Commission will use this policy to recommend separate accreditation of the
extended unit. No response required by the institution.

Not Applicable,

3.14.1 A member or candidate institution represents its accredited status accurately and
publishes the name, address, and telephone number of the Commission in accordance
with Commission requirements and federal policy. (Publication of accreditation
status)
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Ranger College appropriately represents its accreditation status in such publications as
the college catalog and the college’s website.

D.

Assessment of Compliance with Section 4: Federal Requirements
*4.1

The institution evaluates success with respect to student achievement consistent with
its mission. Criteria may include: enrollment data; retention, graduation, course
completion, and job placement rates; state licensing examinations, student portfolios;
or other means of demonstrating achievement of goals. (Student achievement)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that while the institution regularly
evaluates course completion, graduation rates, retention rates, and licensure rates,
there were no institutional benchmarks established by the institution.
The institution provided the On-Site Committee with documentation of the following
student achievement information: Completion rates for all courses, degree completion,
VN-NCLEX passage rates, Cosmetology passage rates, transfer rates, and
developmental studies course success statistics. There was a reference to a state
required passage rate for the VN and Cosmetology programs, however the institution
did not indicate it was using the state mandated passage rate as a benchmark for its
evaluation of student achievement. The institution has not established benchmarks for
evaluation of success with respect to student achievement consistent with its mission.
Recommendation 4 The QnReaffirmation Committee recommends that the
institution evaluates suctpss ‘wjfl respect to student achievement consistent
with its mission.
A

*4.2

The institution’s curriculum is directly related and appropriate to the mission and goals
of the institution and the diplomas, certificates, or degrees awarded. (Program
curriculum)
-

‘V

b

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that the institution offers transfer associate
degrees and workforce degrees and certificates that are directly related to its mission
to provide “academic courses.. .Ieading to transferable college credit” and “workforce
education courses and programs that lead to employment [or] licensure.” These
programs (AA, AS, MS in welding, and MS in nursing and certificates in welding,
nursing, cosmetology, information technology and office technology) are in subject
areas appropriate to the degrees and certificates awarded and are appropriate to
higher education.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed pages 84-89 of the College Catalog
and interviewed the Vice President of Instruction in support of the institution’s case for
compliance and affirms the findings of the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.
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*4,3

The institution makes available to students and the public current academic calendars,
grading policies, and refund policies. (Publication of policies)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee noted that the college makes available to its
constituents and the public the academic calendar, refund policies, and grading
policies through the website, catalog, and student handbook. The information is widely
distributed, allowing for access for all interested persons.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed pages 5-35 of the College Catalog,
Web page, and Student handbook and interviewed the Vice President of Instruction in
support of the institution’s case for compliance and affirms the findings of the Off-Site
Reaffirmation Committee.

*4,4

Program length is appropriate for each of the institution’s educational programs.
(Program length)
i
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reported that Ranger CoNege offers degree
programs of appropriate length (at least 60 credit hours). Length of program is
determined by policies established by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board.
The college catalog lists the credit hour requirements for all programs.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee confirmed that program lengths were consistent
with the requirements of the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board as verified by
the Admissions Office staff and information presented in the online college catalog.

*45

The institution has adequate procedures for addressing written student complaints and
is responsible for demonstrating that it follows those procedures when resolving
student complaints. (See the Commission policy “Complaint Procedures against the
Commission or its Accredited Institutions. 7 (Student complaints)
.3

‘

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that Ranger College has policies in
place for students to file complaints. Students have the option of completing the form
in person in the Dean of Students Office or online using the Grievance Form. The four
areas addressed for complaints include disciplinary, discriminatory, instruction, and
comblaints not dealing with instruction. Based on the example provided, the process
has been followed and a complaint resolved during the informal process. The Dean of
Students is the person responsible for the complaint process. The policy can be found
by students on the college’s website within the student handbook.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the policy and examples of student
complaints in support of the institution’s case for compliance and affirms the findings of
the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.

*4.6

Recruitment materials and presentations accurately represent the institution’s practices
and policies. (Recruitment materials)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the college did not provide
enough documentation to determine if adequate representation of practices and
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policies are met. The copy of the one brochure appears adequate. The college only
provided screenshots of different webpages.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed documents and conducted interviews
in support of the institution’s case for compliance and affirms that Ranger College
provides recruitment materials and presentations that accurately represent their
practices and policies. Items reviewed include the college catalog, registration/exam
schedules, brochures, calendars, the student handbook, and their extensive
information packed official college web-site. A recorded presentation provided to
potential dual credit students was also reviewed. In addition, interviews were held with
the Dean of Enrollment Management and the Dean of Students to verify materials
preparation and dissemination, and the overall recruitment processes of Ranger
College.
*4,7

The institution is in compliance with its program responsibilities’under Title IV of the
most recent Higher Education Act as amended. (In reviewing the institution’s
compliance with these program responsibilities, the Commission relies on
documentation forwarded to it by the U.S. Department of Education.) (Title IV program
responsibilities)
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the College’s audit reports and related
management letters for FY 11-12, FY 10-11, and FY 09-10. There were no audit
findings or questioned costs related to the Title IV programs in any of the three fiscal
years reviewed. In each report it was the auditor’s opinion that the College complied,
in all material respects, with the compliance requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federa rdtams.

4

.

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee reviewed the Colleges audit reports and related
management letters for Fiscal Years 2011-2012, 2010-2011, and 2009-2010. These
annual audits were conducted by the CPA firm, Snow. Garrett, & Company, and each
one stated that the audit had addressed “the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
College’s major federal programs” for the years ended August 31, 2012, August 31,
2011, and August 31, 2010. There were no audit findings or questioned costs related
to the Title IV programs in any of the three fiscal years reviewed. The auditors
concluded that “in our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to.. .that could have a material effect on each of its
major federal programs.”
The On-Site Committee also reviewed the College’s Program Participation Agreement
(PPA), as well as the Eligibility and Certified Approval Report (ECAR). These
documents approve the College’s participation authorization through June 30, 2016.
Committee members also interviewed the Dean of Student Services and the Director of
Financial Aid. During this interview, the original PPA and ECAR were reviewed and
these College officials verified that no issues exist with Title IV programs for the
institution, that the institution has not been placed on the reimbursement method, and
the institution has not been required to obtain a letter of credit in favor of the
Department of Education. The College has received no complaints related to financial
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aid that have been filed with the Department of Education regarding the institution, and
no adverse communication has been received from the Department of Education.

C)

The Committee reviewed the Colleges Program Participation Agreement (PPA). The
PPA is valid through June 30, 2016.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the College is in compliance
with its program responsibilities under Title IV of the most recent Higher Education Act
as amended and affirms the findings of the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.
*4.8

A-s

7

An institution that offers distance or correspondence education documents each of the
following: (Distance and correspondence education)
4.8.1

demonstrates that the student who registers in a distanc or correspondence
education course or program is the same student who participates in and
completes the course or program and receives the credit by verifying the
identity of a student who participates in class or coursework by using, at the
option of the institution, methods such as (a) a secure login and pass code, (b)
proctored examinations, or (c) new or other technologies and practices that are
effective in verifying student identification.
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that Ranger College’s response to
FR 4.8.1 did not appropriately address the standard. However, review of the
College’s responses to FR 4.8.2 indicates the appropriate assignment of a
secure username and password for students to access online technology.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s review of Posted Proctored Exam
Information for Distance Students, emails of proctored exam requirements to
faculty, the institution’s Blackboard login page, and sign in sheets for proctored
exams at campus and centers confirms that the institution demonstrates that
the student who registers in a distance or correspondence course is the same
student who participates and receives credit by verifying student identity.

‘

h.

4.8.2

Ranger College requires students to obtain a student identification card.
Instructors require students to present a picture ID and sign in to document time
of testing when taking all proctored exams. Students enrolled in distance
learning courses must also utilize a secure username and password to login to
their courses. The institution appropriately documents verification of student
identification.
has a written procedure for protecting the privacy of students enrolled in
distance and correspondence education courses or programs.
Adherence to FERPA was referenced as the security for privacy of all students
enrolled in college.

4.8.3

has a written procedure distributed at the time of registration or enrollment that
notifies students of any projected additional student charges associated with
verification of student identity.
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The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee could not determine the Compliance with
the information provided in the Compliance Certification.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee’s review confirms that the institution has
a written procedure notifying students of projected additional charges of
identification verification at time of enrollment. Ranger College requires
students to obtain a college ID which is used to verify identity. The cost for the
initial ID card is ten dollars; however, the fee is charged to the student’s
account for the ID as documented in the 2013 Student Handbook. Additionally,
class schedules for internet courses clearly indicate an additional $50 online fee
per course on the institution’s website.
*49

The institution has policies and procedures for determining the credit hours awarded
for courses and programs that conform to commonly accepted practices in higher
education and to Commission policy. (See the Commission policy Credit Hours.’)
(Definition of credit hours)

x

The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that Ranger College has the policies
and procedures in place to properly determine and award academic credit. Texas
Administrative Code, Rule 4 .257 defines a semester hour as containing 50 minutes of
instruction for a 15 week period and Texas Administrative Code, Rule 4.6 defines
minimum contact hours for a semester. The institution follows both these directives.
Program lengths are published in the Catalog and online and conform to commonly
accepted practices in higher education and to Commission policy (M 64 5CR AAT 61
SCH, AS 64 SCH, and MS SCH viry but all programs require a minimum of 60 SCH).
The On-Site Reaffirmation CornLpftteteviewed the Texas Administrative Code and
interviewed the Vice PresideQt ci Instruction in support of the institution’s case for
compliance and aff ms th’ä1fidings of the Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee.

E.

Additional Observations regarding strengths and weaknesses of the institution.
(optional).
The Off-Site Reaffirmation Committee noted that the Compliance Certification was poorly
done:

4

1. An exceedingly high number of links in the document either did not work or did not take
the reviewer to the document referenced.
The
overall report was shallow; that is, it did not address the standards in depth or in
2.
their entirety nor did it consistently provide evidence to support its assertions.
3. Readers were often left to “ferret out” evidence that should have been presented in one
standard by looking for it in other related standards.

The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee provides these additional observations regarding
strengths and weaknesses of the institution:
1. The institution would benefit from professional development in the development and
presentation of accreditation material. In particular, the institutional effectiveness material
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could be organized and presented in a more efficient manner. Professional development
in responding to core requirements, comprehensive standards, and federal requirements
would be beneficial.
2. Ranger College faculty and staff are truly dedicated to the success of the college as shown
by the multiple and varied responsibilities assumed by many faculty and staff members.
3. The significant progress from 31 non-compliance findings identified by the Off-Site
Committee to only four findings of the On-Site Committee demonstrates the institution’s
desire to use the SACSCOC standards and processes to be an effective institution.
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Part III. Assessment of the Quality Enhancement Plan
A. Brief description of the institution’s Quality Enhancement Plan
The Ranger College Quality Enhancement Plan (QEP), Engage with E-Learnthg (to
increase student success and student learning by engaging students through the use of
technology), was identified through broad-based involvement of institutional
constituencies and addresses the needs of diverse and geographically separated
campuses. Their data-informed decision-making process involved students, faculty,
staff, administration, board members, and area residents through surveys and
participation in committees.
&
I.

The focus of the QEP, Engage with E-Learning, supports Ranger College’s mission: “To
provide teaching and learning opportunities through academics, developmental
education, workforce programs, and continuing education, empowering individuals to
become responsible members of the local and global community.”
To fulfill this QEP, Ranger identified three primary objectives: (1) to improve campus
technology infrastructure; (2) to improve faculty expertise in use of technology; and (3) to
enhance instructional course design for increased student engagement. Engage With E
Learning will seek to:
Increase access and availability of technology, and infrastructure to support use
of technology by faculty, staff and students at Ranger College
Use the “cascade-model” to train champion teachers on the use of technology
who will in turn provide workshops for all Ranger College faculty.
Implement an early alert program that uses attendance tracking software as a
means intervene “while there is still time for the student to positively change”
their grade for the course.
Enhance instructional course design using best practices, MyMathLab,
Blackboard course structure, videos and activities to increase student
engagement.
To Increase access and availability of technology Ranger College will purchase new
equipment and software, increase bandwidth, and hire an IT Director and Retention
Coordinator. With faculty training, they will use this technology and infrastructure to
employ best practices to deliver content in new meaningful ways to students. One
developmental and one college algebra course will undergo curriculum redesign and
assess student learner outcomes. Student success will be demonstrated by students
earning at least a “C” in the course.
Subsequently all courses (and faculty) will be required to standardize their content in
Blackboard giving students a consistent experience. Other measures of this QEP, and
its objectives are faculty attendance at training; percentage of courses using Blackboard;
student attendance, engagement, satisfaction surveys, retention progression, and
diagnostic accuplacer for Math. Ranger College expects that with technology, faculty
training to use technology, and enhanced course design students will attend class, be
engaged and learning outcomes will be improved.
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To implement the QEP, Ranger College has strong support from the College
administration and its Board of Regents for adequate funding and facilities. Ranger
College has also allocated human and financial resources to ensure the success of this
QEP. The majority of the expense, shown in the QEP Master Budget, will be for the
technical infrastructure and personnel. The commitment of salaries and human capital
for the QEP Director (50%), Retention Coordinator, and IT director (50%) are noted as
evidence.
B. Analysis of the Acceptability of the Quality Enhancement Plan
1. An Institutional Process. The institution uses an institutional process for identifying
C
key issues emerging from institutional assessment.
Ranger College has an institutional process for identifying key issues emerging from
institutional assessment. The institution provides evidence of the use of survey data
from students, faculty, administration, Board of Regents members, and the
community. To further identify key issues, Ranger College analyzed data from
annual Administrative Council meetings, faculty and staff development sessions, the
Community College Faculty Survey of Student Engagement(CCFSSE), the
Community College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE), the Survey of
Entering Student Engagement (SENSE), and from reports available on student
success, student attendance, studenUfaculty technology needs, and student
retention.
Using data from these sources, the institution identified a need to improve student
engagement for increased student learning; consequently, the focus of Ranger
College’s Quality Enhancement Plan, Engage with E-Learning, is to increase student
success and student learning by engaging students through the use of technology.
The objectives identified to accomplish this QEP are: 1) to improve campus
technology infrastructure; 2) to improve faculty expertise in use of instructional
technology; and 3) to enhance instructional course design for increased student
engagement. The Quality Enhancement Plan supports the Ranger College mission
for teaching and learning opportunities in foundational courses by implementing
curriculum redesign for Beginning Algebra and Geometry and College Algebra.
2. Focus of the Plan. The institution identifies a significant issue that (1) focuses on
learning outcomes and/or the environment supporting student learning and (2)
accomplishes the mission of the institution.
Ranger College has identified a significant issue related to student learning by
‘ç focusing
the QEP on increasing student success and student learning by engaging

Aç

students through the use of technology. The QEP is related to the college’s mission
of providing “teaching and learning opportunities.”
The QEP focuses on both learning outcomes and the environment supporting
student learning. Three objectives have been identified that have the potential to
dramatically impact student learning: 1) improve campus technology infrastructure,
2) improve faculty expertise in the use of instructional technology, and 3) enhance
instructional course design for student engagement.
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The QEP addresses a barrier to success identified during the selection of the QEP
topic. Both students and faculty felt that lack of technology was a major barrier to the
success of its students. After an analysis of data showing student success in
courses, it was determined that developmental math courses had the lowest level of
student success. So, while the overall focus of the QEP is to improve the use of
technology, much of the curriculum redesign will focus on math.
3. Institutional Capability for the Initiation. Implementation, and Completioapf the
Plan. The institution provides evidence that it has sufficient resources to itiate,
implement, sustain, and complete the QEP.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee determined that the institution has developed
a Quality Enhancement Plan that demonstrates institutional capability for the
initiation, implementation, and completion of the QEP. The QEP budget for Ranger
College includes funds for personnel, training, supplies, travel, and equipment.
Line Item
Personnel
Training
Supplies
Travel
EquIpment

Phase 0
$ 86,250
11,578
103,978
3,500
613,714

Totals

$819,020

Phase 1
$111,750
20,100
118,750
4,500

Phase 2
$ 110,250
7,700
108,250

4

4,500
133,545

91k
h$364,245
$346,448

Phase 3
$69,000
2,125
71,000
-0-0-

Total
$ 377,250
41,503
401,978
12,500
838,607

142,125

$1,671,838

Personnel allocations for the QEP include one half-time QEP Director, one half
time IT Position, one half-time Retention Coordinator, Curriculum Development
stipends for two full-time faculty, and funds for the QEP lead writer. Interviews
with staff and faculty revealed the adequacy of the employees assigned to the
QEP budget.
The training includes Blackboard administrator training, E-Learning specialist
Blackboard training, MyMathLab/E specialist training, and faculty technology
training. Supplies include general supplies, 1W line/internet lines with additional
bandwidth, software and licenses, marketing materials, internet bridge, testing
instrument, and technology software.
—

Travel includes conferences for the faculty to attend training sessions. According
to the CFO, travel is included in other staff/faculty budgets for the SACSCOC
conferences so the employees can stay abreast of new changes but is not a part
of this travel allocation.

4

The equipment budget includes Blackboard servers, intemet building
connections, Smartsoard systems, computers, graphing calculators, and 11 1W
systems.
The Equipment portion of the budget is funded mainly by a USDA Rural Utilities
Services Distance Learning &Telemedicine Grant in the amount of $323,616,
Carl Perkins funds, and some Title Ill Student Support Services funds. The
remainder of the budget is being funded by increased tuition due to increased
enrollment, increased state funding, and College reserve funds.
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The Chief Financial Officer indicated during an interview that the majority of the
equipment amounting to $613,714 for Phase 0 has already been ordered,
received, and paid for. Interviews with groups of staff and faculty at Ranger
College are very excited at the role this new technology is playing to enhance the
impact on student learning. Tours of the campus and off-campus sites revealed
the implementation of some of this equipment.
In order to provide sustainability, the Quality Enhancement Plan states that to
ensure the capability of the QEP and to offset technological expenditures,
Ranger College will implement a $4.00 per semester hour technology fee in the
spring of 2014. Based on the 201 2-2013 credit hour totals, this fee will generate
an additional $133,620 in revenue.” In an interview with the Chief Financial
Officer, it was explained that none of this new revenue will be used to fund the
current QEP Master Budget but will be available to enhance the plan as needed.
This indicates forward thinking on the pad of the College to have these funds
available to strengthen the success of the QEP.
4. Broad-based Involvement of Institutional Constituencies. The institution
demonstrates the involvement of its constitue des in the cthvelopment and
proposed implementation of the Plan.
Ranger College included broad-based involvement of institutional constituencies
in the development and proposed implementation of its QEP, including students,
faculty, administration, staff, board members and community members. The
topic-selection process involved every aspect of the campus community,
including students and personnel from Ranger, Erath, and Brown
campuses/centers and dual-credit students. Students, faculty, staff,
administration, board members, and area residents completed surveys,
participated in committees and slogan contests, and provided input throughout
the process.
A twenty-person QEP committee, consisting of faculty from multiple disciplines,
staff members,IT personnel, students, board members and administration
gathered data from the college’s constituencies and identified the final QEP topic
based on the consensus of all stakeholders. The various teams charged with
implementing the actions of the QEP drew upon the expertise found in all sectors
of the campus community, from Vice Presidents and Board members to studentathletes and local residents.
The QEP committees worked closely with the Administrative Council and the
President. To assist with implementing the QEP, a Technology Committee was
farmed and the college committed to hiring an IT Director, RetentIon Coordinator
and E-Learning Specialist. All students will be impacted by the upgrades in
technology and the use of Blackboard. All faculty will be required to participate in
professional development to “bring faculty members to the same level of
expertise on all available technologies and ensure that they build these
innovations into their curriculum.”
Faculty members will also be required to standardize course content in
Blackboard, thus giving all students a consistent experience. Gateway courses
DMAT 0313 and MATH 1314 will be used for the implementation of the QEP’s
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objective of curriculum redesign. MATH 1314 is required in the majority of
college transfer curricula, thus involving a large percentage of the Ranger
College Students in the implementation of the QEP. The implementation
involves students and personnel at all campuses as well as dual-credit students.
In summary, Ranger College has demonstrated broad-based involvement of
institutional constituencies in both the development and proposed
implementation of its QEP, Engage with E-Learning.
5. Assessment of the Plan. The institution identifies goals and a plan to assess
the achievement of those goals.
The institution has identified three objectives for its QEP. Each objective has an
assessment plan that includes 3-5 outcomes related to the objective. The
outcomes are linked to specific actions that will be completed to achieve the
outcome. Each outcome has a target achievement level associated with it. The
number and sequence of the objective based outcomes allow the institution to
assess the QEP throughout each phase of implementation. The assessment plan
includes various instruments that allow both direct and indirect assessments and
formative and summative evaluations of each objective.
A
The institution proposes to measure achievement of the student learning
outcomes by a 25% gain in scores between a pre-and post-test in the two target
math classes. There are five student learning outcomes in one course and
seven in the second course. A cumulative gain of 25% between pre-and postexam scores will not indicate which student learning outcome(s) the student has
achieved. Therefore, reporting the score gain by individual SLO will
demonstrate areas for improvement.
a
C. Analysis and Comments for Strengthening the QEP
The members of the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee offer the following observations:
It is evident that the process used by Ranger College to develop the QEP has already
had a positive impact on the faculty, staff, and students. The impact is most noticeable
in the enthusiasm, improved infrastructure, and the bringing together of the members of
the Ranger College community. The On-Site Committee believes this plan has the
potential to transform teaching and learning for the institution.
.zrt
‘i [1) Ranger College should develop events/opportunities to celebrate the successes
achieved by the plan. For instance, the institution might consider annual collegewide QEP day to recognize and celebrate significant achievements. In addition
Ranger College might consider publishing an annual QEP progress report
submitted to the Board and posted on the college website. This annual report
would be the basis for the required QEP Impact Report due in year five.
2) The institution proposes to measure achievement of the student learning
outcomes by a 25% gain in scores between a pre-and post-test in the two target
math classes. There are five student learning outcomes in one course and
seven in the second course. A cumulative gain of 25% between pre-and post
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exam scores will not indicate which student learning outcome(s) the student has
achieved.
3) Ranger College should monitor the availability and use of technology in the
libraries at all of its campus sites to ensure that the personnel and IT
infrastructure are able to support the QEP. This is especially essential given the
expected growth in student enrollment and student engagement with technology.
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Part IV. Third-Party Comments
No Third-Party Comments were submitted to the SACS Commission on Colleges regarding
Ranger College.
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APPENDIX A
Roster of the Off-Site
Reaffirmation Committee

Roster of the On-Site
Reaffirmation Committee

Dr. Diane M. Calhoun-French Chair
Provost & VP for Academic & Student Affairs
Jefferson Community and Technical College
Louisville, KY

Dr. Gene C. Couch Chair
Executive Vice President
Alamance Community College
Graham, NC

Mary Beth Applin
District Dean, Learning Ressouces Centers
Hinds Community College
Raymond, MS

Christina D. Dooley
Dean of Accreditation and Learning
South Louisiana Community College
Lafayette, LA

Dr. Edward J. Banas
Assistant Dean for Business Careers
Northem Virginia CC Woodbhdge Campus
Annandale, VA

Kim E. Faw
VP, Instructional Support & Student Services
Wilkes Community College
Wilkesboro, NC

Ms. Regina J. Burden
Assistant Vice President for Student Affairs
Motlow State Community College
Lynchburg, TN

Virginia S. Lucas
Vice President of Finance
Sampson Community College
Clinton, NC

Mr. Danny C. Gibbs
Vice President for Business and Finance
Roane State Community College
Harriman, TN

Dr. Timmy J. James
Associate Dean of Instructional Programs
Northwest-Shoals Community College
Phil Campbell, AL

Dr. Debi G. Hendershot
Dean for Planning, Research and Grants
Calhoun Community College
Tanner, AL

Rilla K. Jones
Dean of Instruction
Northeast Mississippi Community College
Booneville, MS

Ms. Deborah R. Lea
Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs
Delgado Community College
New Orleans, LA

Larry Teems
Retired Acting President
GA Piedmont Technical College
Stone Mountain, GA

Ms. Susan S. Norton
Assistant VP for Academic Programs
Trident Technical College
North Chadestown, SC

Demetra W. Pearson
Technical Services Librarian
Francis Marion University
Florence, SC

—
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Dr. Peggy Saunier
Professor, Math Department
Bluegrass Community & Technical College
Lexington, KY

Melissa LaCour Lead QEP Evaluator
Dean, Distance Leaming &
Instructional Technology
Delgado Community College
New Orleans, LA
—

Dr. Allen A. Witt
Campus President Hillsborough
Community College HCC SouthShore
Tampa, FL

SACSCOC Staff Renresentative
Dr. Mark V. Smith
Vice President

-

-
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SACSCOC Staff Coordinator
Dr. Barry Goldstein
Vice President

0
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APPENDIX B
Off-Campus Sites or Distance Learning Programs Reviewed
Ranger College Erath County Center
Bosque River Center
2900W. Washington 111
Stephenville, TX 76401
The Erath County Centered opened in January, 2010 when Ranger College entered into
a lease agreement with the Bosque River Center to lease 2,200 square feet on the east
side of the center. The space includes two classrooms, lobby, student services office,
(1W) classroom, and a computer lab.
—
This Center currently provides general education courses, AA and AS, to meet the
needs of Stephenville and surrounding communities. The Erath County Center offers
credit classes during both the day and evening, some of which are integrated with
distance learning. In addition to credit courses, the center hosts non-credit courses,
such as a Commercial Truck Driving Program and CNA. Ranger also offers a
Cosmetology Program with 38 students which is currently located nearby at another
leased site in Stephenville. Computer training and customized corporate training are
also offered. Enrollment at this site is around 250 students1 which has doubled since last
year. Ranger College believes that this trend will continue. The site shares 5-10 fulltime faculty with Ranger and hires approximately 15-20 adjunct faculty members.
The Center offers a variety of student services including registration, advising, entrance
assessments, textbooks sales, and library services. The Center also serves as a testing
center. A counselor is available at this site three days per week. The College’s website
lists the schedule of classes offered each semester. Students can register and pay on
line. Financial aid is provided on a debit card. A Librarian is available two days a week
during the evening hours. At other times students use Texshare and Interlibrary Loans.
Students may also call, text, email, or live chat with the librarian at the main campus and
their needs are taken care of. Students at the Erath County site also have access to
and borrowing privileges at Tarteton State University which is about 1 1/2 to 2 miles from
campus.

4

Safety and secu%y is provided by the local Police Department, by the staff, and by
posting safety procedures. As a result of a recent grant, technology was upgraded,
including increasing the number of computer stations from 8 to 30, upgrading the ITV
system, and installing white boards and smart boards. Requests for additional services
are submitted through the Director of Continuing Education, and the main campus offers
these services as needed.
The College’s Master Facility Plan refers to the condition of both the Erath County
Center and the Erath County Cosmetology as average. The Center, as well as
Cosmetology, is scheduled to move to a much larger facility in January 2014. According
to the Ranger College President, the Center is expected to offer increased programs,
thus increasing enrollment and revenue for the College.
Three members of the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee toured Ranger College’s
facilities in Stephenville, TX on October 22, 2013. The institution’s Vice President of
the Erath County Center presented an overview of the services and programs offered at
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the site and afterwards conducted a tour. The Committee interviewed the Director of
Continuing Education, and the Chairperson of Ranger College Erath County Advisory
Committee who spoke very highly of the positive impact that Ranger College is making
on the citizens of Stephenville.
In addition, the Committee toured the new facility and was impressed with the building,
its new location, and the amount of additional space that will be available to the College
to provide programs and services to Erath County.
Ranger College Brown County Center
300 Early Blvd. Suite #105
Early, Texas 76802
Members of the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee visited the Brown County Center of
Ranger College on Tuesday, October 22, 2013. The Brown County Center is one of two
centers of Ranger College. At the Brown County Center, 50% or more of the courses
are offered for the Associate of Arts, the Associate of Science, and The Associate
Degree Nursing. Licensed Vocational Nursing and a cosmetology certificate are also
L
offered at the site.
A

The programs are all outlined in the Ranger College Catalog and are on the college
website. In addition to these programs, students attending this campus may take a
number of genera! education and/or other courses. A review of the programs indicates
that expected student learning outcomes are comparable for the Ranger College
campus and their two centers, including the Brown County Center, and that the program
length is appropriate for each of the educational programs.
At the Brown County Center, 348 students are enrolled for the 2013 Fall Semester. The
administrative employee employed full-time at the Brown County Center is the Executive
Vice President for Ranger College. A part-time librarian, ten full-time and twenty adjunct
instructors are currently employed at the Brown County Center. Sufficient clerical staff
also serves this center. Other college administrators and department chairs visit the
campus on an as needs b,asis.
The Brown County Center of Ranger College consists of 15,000 square feet of space,
with five classrooms, one lecture hall, a practical nursing clinical lab, a computer lab, a
testing center/library, a student support services area, a student lounge, and various
other office space. The campus appears to have adequate parking and sufficient
j’facilities for the number of students it serves. Campus security reports indicate that it is
A%a safe and secure campus for students and is an appropriate environment in which
college learning can take place.

y

The Brown County Center of Ranger College has adequate library facilities for its
students. Appropriate books, periodicals, reference materials, computer access to
digital reference material, space, librarians and library staff are provided on campus.
This campus also has adequate technology resources and computer labs to sufficiently
serve the students enrolled.
The On-Site Reaffirmation Committee found that student academic support services,
such as tutoring and developmental success labs, and student support services such as
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C)

financial aid, counseling, and veterans affairs, are appropriate in nature and enhance the
development of its students.
Academic calendars, grading policies, refund policies, and procedures for addressing
written student complaints at the Brown County Center of Ranger College, were found in
a variety of documents, i.e., catalogs, schedules, student handbooks, and other student
related materials, were readily available to students on campus.
In summary, the On-Site Reaffirmation Committee affirms that the Brown County Center
accomplishes the mission of the college, has adequate personnel and facilities, and is a
viable center for Ranger College and an asset for students and the community that it
serves.
v

‘Sb.)

High School Sites

Ranger College serves 25 high schools in their service area. Enro ment in dual-credit
classes varies by high school. Ninety-five percent of the high school students enroll in
general education transfer courses. High school students are first eligible to enroll in
college classes the summer between their sophomor
‘
unior years.
Two committee members visited Eastland and Ranger High Schools. At Eastland High
School committee members met with the high school English teacher, two dual-credit
students, and the high school counselor. Committee members visited a Biology class in
the 1W class that was transmitting to Ranger and Olney high schools via the 1W
classroom. According to the counselor, high school students take college classes at the
high school with Ranger faculty or SACs quplified high school teachers, online or
through 1W.
Courses are offered at a reduced rate and include English, British Literature, Biology, US
History, Speech, Math, Art, Music, Computers, Sociology and Psychology. Thirty-five
percent of high school juniors and seniors enroll in dual-credit and concurrent enrollment
courses, many earning 40+ credits with some earning an Associate degree upon
graduation from high school. Since implementing the dual-credit option, high school
students report to being more college ready” and more students are enrolling in college
after high school.

r

While visiting Ranger High School, committee members met with several dual-credit
juniors and seniors and the high school principal. The principal discussed articulation
agreements where College English 1 & 2 is equivalent to high school junior English and
British Literature I & 2 is equivalent to high school senior English. Ranger has around 30
students per grade level, with about 1/3 enrolling in dual-credit classes.
‘V

During this off-campus site visit, committee members also connected with high school
teachers and counselors via ITV transmitted between Ranger campus and Brownwood.
All participants had students enrolled in dual-credit courses and felt that this option helps
high students become college-ready and more likely to continue with college after high
school.
Through the various interviews, it was obvious that dual-credit is encouraged and
supported by the high schools and provides a wonderful opportunity for high school
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students to take college classes, earning both high school and college credit at reduced
cost, and helping prepare them to be college-ready.

-K.
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APPENDIX C
List of Recommendations
Cited in the Report of the Reaffirmation Committee
CS 3.3.1.1 (Institutional Effectiveness Educational Programs) Recommendation 1.
The Committee recommends that the institution identifies expected outcomes, assesses
the extent to which it achieves these outcomes, and provides evidence of improvement
based on analysis of the results in each of its educational programs, to include’€ttldent
It.,,,
learning outcomes.
—

CS 3.7.1 (Faculty Competence) Recommendation 2.
The Committee recommends that the institution employs competent acu
qualified to accomplish the mission and goals of the institution.

embers

CS 3.12.1 (Substantive Change) Recommendation 3.
The Committee recommends that the institution notifies the.CoThmi’ n of chanaesin
accordance with the Commission’s substantive change.ooIiandjvhen required, seeks
approval prior to the initiation of changes.
FR 4.1 (Student Achievement) Recommendation 4.
The Committee recommends that the institution evaluate uccess with respect to student
achievement consistent with its mission.
-
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Request for Justifying and Documenting
Qualifications of Faculty
Institution: Ranger College
For each of the faculty members listed below, the committee either found the academic qualification of
the faculty member to be inadequate and/or the institution did not adequately justify and document the
faculhj member’s other qualifications to teach the identified course(s). For each case, the committee
checked the column appropriate to its findings and provided additional comments if needed to clarify the
concern.
The institution is requested to submit additional justification and documentation on the qualifications of
each of the faculty member listed. When responding, the institution should use the Commission’s Faculty
Roster Form: Qualifications of Full-Time and Part-Time Faculty” and its “Instructions for Reporting the
Qualifications of Full-Time and Part-Time Faculty,” which can be accessed under the Institutional
Resources tab of the Commission website: www.sacscoc.org. Read the instructions carefully and pay
close attention to the section “Providing Information that Establishes Qualifications.” The completed form,
or similar document, should be included as part of the institution’s formalçonse to the Commission,
1

2

3

Name of Faculty
Member

Course(s) In Question

Inadequate
Academic
Qualifications

Sherri Blassingame
(P)

BIOL 2401, BIOL 2401L,
BIOL 2402, BIOL 2402L

X

4
lnsufficIL,.
Justification
of Other
Qualifications
‘

-

—

5
Comments
(if needed)
No degree/insufficient hours
in teaching discipline

,b.VW

0

sywl

KV___
______
y
Form Adopted: January 2007Updated: January 2011
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